


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Monday, September 17, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call
III. Consent Agenda Items

A. Minutes of July 10 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
B. Minutes of July 17, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
C. Minutes of August 7, 2018 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
D. Minutes of September 11, 2018 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
E. Minutes of September 11, 2018 Special Board Meeting
F. Approval of the Bills: 7/12/18-8/17/18 and 8/18/18-9/12/18

IV. Matters from the Public
V. Approval of Resolution No. 887 – Brad Janis 20 Years’ Service 

VI. Financial Report: July and August
VII. Presentation by Friends of the Green Bay Trail on SOSA Project

VIII. Presentation of the 2018 Summer Camp Report
IX. Staff Reports

A.  Business
B. Recreation and Facilities
C. Parks and Maintenance
D. Marketing and Communications
E. Safety and Wellness Committee

X. Executive Director Report 
XI. Action Items

A. Approval of IGS Natural Gas Contract
XII. Other Business

XIII. Executive Session
A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1)

XIV. Adjournment
The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JULY 10, 2018 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE 
MEETING

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, Chair/Treasurer Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President  Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner  
Josh Lutton, Commissioner  

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Caleb Barth, John 
McManus, Edward Torrez 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public. 

Discussion on Lakefront Park / Glencoe Beach Bluff Study: Executive Director Sheppard 
introduced John McManus of Altamanu stated that preliminary findings will be shared 
tonight, not the final report. John McManus relayed Board directives, water effects on 
the bluff, the bluff’s condition. Mr. McManus introduced Baird’s Marine Engineer Caleb 
Barth who addressed surface water management and erosion, bluff slope stability, 
conclusion, and recommendations. Mr. Barth answered commissioner questions. 
Edward Torrez of Bauer Latoza Studio gave observations of the Halfway House and the 
Beach House. Mr. Torrez answered commissioner questions. All presentations are 
attached to these minutes. 

The final report will be presented to the Board in a few months. 

Discussion on Parks with Standing Water:  Executive Director Sheppard explained that 
extreme rainfall has led to standing water in our parks and has been very challenging. 
Discussion ensued. 

Update on Park Projects: Executive Director Sheppard then updated the committee on
ongoing capital projects. The playgrounds are coming along really well. Grand openings 
are to be announced. 

Director of Finance/HR Carol Mensinger and Administrative Assistant Jenny Runkel 
entered the meeting.

Recognition of Retiring Commissioner – Steve Gaines: Commissioners and staff 
commented on Commissioner Gaines’ time as a Park Board Member and thanked him 
for his service. Chair Onderdonk read and Executive Director presented retiring 



2

commissioner Steve Gaines with a plaque. Commissioner Gaines was offered an 
honorary plaque to be placed at a park of his choice. 

Comments from Retiring Commissioner – Steve Gaines: Commissioner Gaines 
commented on his role at the District, personal experiences, praised staff members and 
commissioners, and thanked the community. 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public. 

Other Business: The committee discussed ongoing projects. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Lutton moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:13pm. Commissioner 
Boron seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JULY 17, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS 60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Vice President Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Josh Lutton, Treasurer Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Michael LaPorte, Ben 
Miller

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented including Minutes of June 19, 2018 Finance 
Committee of the Whole meeting, June 19, 2018 Regular Board meeting, Cooperative 
Planning, Use, and Maintenance of Facilities and Parks Policy, Quality and 
Professionally Trained Staff Policy, Volunteer Policy, and Approval of the Bills. 
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote 
taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
  NAYS: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Matters from the Public: Michael LaPorte of the Village Nominating Committee reviewed 
the committee purpose and powers. VNC is currently soliciting applications with an 
extended deadline of September 17, 2018 at midnight. Ben Miller introduced himself as 
a VNC committee member. 

Financial Report:  Executive Director Sheppard stated we are four months into the fiscal 
year. Financials are in line with previous years, although the beach is a little lower due 
to weather or closures from unsafe surf including rip tides and currents and water/high 
bacteria days. It was noted that busy days are almost making up for the closures. 
Tracking shows eight closures so far this year, zero closures at this time last year with a 
total last year of six closures. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports. 

Executive Director Sheppard gave the business department report. Registration begins 
August 1 for residents with nonresidents beginning on August 6. Staff, managers, and 
department heads come in for registration on August 1 prior to the 7:00am online 
registration. Ongoing projects include the Three Year Capital Projects Plan to be 



2

presented at a committee meeting, Distinguished Accreditation, and PDRMA Loss 
Control Review. We are working with the same consultant, Hay Group to do a salary 
review. The review will include job descriptions that have changed since the last review 
and a salary study. 

Director Collins noted the Loss Control Review Recreation Audit occurred last week and 
went very well with no major concerns from PDRMA. The score is not released yet. The 
beach PDRMA audit went well with a 9.5 score which will go up once they include the 
independent audit that had not happened as of the PDRMA audit. Camp is going well 
and staff are already planning for next year, receiving feedback, and making changes to 
better the program experience. The team is also gearing up for fall programs. The 
Men’s Journal rated Glencoe Beach the third best urban beach in the United States 
based on cleanliness, rentals, and beauty. Amanda and Karen were welcomed as new 
ELC staff members as well as new ELC front desk members Sylwia and Ann. ELC job 
responsibilities were reviewed. 

Director Leiner shared that the parks team is out in full force weeding, mowing, and 
watering. The team is also planning and prepping for the shutdown in August along with 
Takiff parking phase 2. The facility is being painted. Little rain in the last two weeks has 
helped the department catch up. The teams are hitting each park as a large group to 
make an immediate impact. The backboard at Shelton Park is being manufactured and 
will be installed early August after the resurfacing, both per community feedback 
request. Playground equipment was installed at both Old Elm and Vernon. Vernon is a 
little delayed due to rain, sidewalks should be done this week, drainage finished next 
week, then moving onto site restorations at the end of the week.

Superintendent Maassen described the Fourth of July custom snap chat filter downtown 
to the lakefront and Hazel to Park Avenue from morning through evening. 127 people 
used it, which got us 4600 views that also saw our logo. We are also using Instagram 
Stories and Facebook Live to engage the younger crowd. 

The Safety and Wellness Committee is working on the loss control review. Staff and 
customer appreciation day is scheduled on Thursday including a light breakfast.

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that even though the 
state has not made an announcement, IAPD communicated that OSLAD grants will be 
due August 1 – October 1. We researched and have secured a grant writer and the 
Green Bay linear park and trail system will be appealing to OSLAD. It has trail 
connectivity serving more than just Glencoe, environmental, plantings, possible fitness, 
sports, playground, gathering, and more. Possibly Lakefront Park although they prefer 
to do something new. We will be working with Altamanu on this project. It is a matching 
grant.

Fourth of July staff worked hard all day from 6:00am-11:00pm setting up, running each 
program, and cleanup. The only snafu was the food trucks. Food trucks are becoming 
so popular they now want guarantees of $300 up front and another $1200 in guaranteed 
sales. This is too big of an investment for us to commit too. We will change the 



3

language going forward. It has never been a problem until this year. We did have two 
vendors back out a couple weeks prior the event because of an all-day event with more 
attendance elsewhere. A majority of our participants come just prior the fireworks. The 
few food vendors we had ran out of food early and the ice cream truck did very well. 

The construction barge and golf course history was reviewed in regards to fireworks. If 
the Board wants to entertain changes, they would need to happen very soon. We send 
beachgoers to nearby Winnetka beaches. Turnbull Woods as the old fireworks location 
was discussed. No Commissioners vocalized a need to change the event. The Village 
wishes to expand the show for the 150th Anniversary at the Village’s expense. 

Takiff Parking phase 1 bioswales are almost finished; grass is filling in although we are 
not thrilled with the quality. Takiff Parking phase 2 is scheduled for this summer.

The parks team finished emergency sewer repairs at the beach.

Takiff will be closed August 20-25 except the Glencoe Fitness, which will be open the 
22-25 for annual maintenance. 

Staff is working heavily on Distinguished Accreditation for the final review in October.

A Lakefront Advisory Group meeting is on August 24 at 7:00p. 

Sheppard is on vacation starting tomorrow to return on Tuesday for the Board meeting, 
connectivity will be limited. Lisa Brooks noted she will be off the grid as well. 

The Sesquicentennial event was reviewed.

Action Items: 

Approval of Commissioner Service Resolution No. 885 – Steven H. Gaines:  A motion 
was made by Commissioner Lutton to approve Commissioner Service Resolution No. 
885 - Steven H. Gaines as presented. Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. 
No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Approval of Resolution No. 886: A Resolution for the Commitment of $300,000 of the 
Corporate Fund Balance and $700,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for Future 
Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park District:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Boron to approve Resolution No. 886: A Resolution for the Commitment of $300,000 of 
the Corporate Fund Balance and $700,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for Future 
Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park District as presented. Commissioner Lutton 
seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 



4

 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Approval of the Annual Treasurer’s Report:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Onderdonk to approve the Annual Treasurer’s Report as presented. Commissioner
Boron seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Approval to Cancel the August Regular Board Meeting:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Boron to approve cancellation of the August Regular Board Meeting as 
presented. Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous 
voice vote. A tour of parks will happen at a committee meeting in October or 
September.
 The motion passed. 

Approval of Energy Contract:  A motion was made by Commissioner Lutton to approve 
and authorize the executive director to sign an agreement for a 36-month contract with 
IGS Inc. at a fixed rate of .599 cents per kilowatt hour as presented. Commissioner 
Boron seconded the motion. Per Executive Director Sheppard, the District will save 
money if we use the same amount of energy as in the past. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Approval of Updated Safety Manual:  A motion was made by Commissioner Lutton to 
approve the updated Safety Manual as presented. Commissioner Onderdonk seconded 
the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. No further discussion ensued.  
 The motion passed.  

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: At 7:45pm, Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn into 
closed session to discuss personnel as mandated by Section 2.06. 5 ILCS 120/2 (a)(3)
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 
Those present in closed session include commissioners and the executive director. 

Return to Open Session:  Commissioner Boron moved to return to open session at 
8:01pm, Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 



5

Action Item: 

Approval of Appointment to fill Glencoe Park District Board Commissioner Vacancy: A 
motion was made by Commissioner Boron to appoint Bob Kimble to fill the Glencoe 
Park District Board Commissioner Vacancy. Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the 
motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
 The motion passed. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:02pm. Commissioner 
Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF AUGUST 7, 2018  
SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, Chair/Treasurer Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President  Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner  

Committee Members absent: 

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Betsy Leibson, Elsabi 
Drost, Adam Hall, Bob Kimble, Harvey Mysel, Robert Ury, Sharon Zulkie 

Matters from the Public: Betsy Leibson thanked the District for the support and work 
completed on the SOSA project, especially Chris Leiner who was wonderful. 

Design Review for Old Green Bay Linear Parks: Executive Director Sheppard reviewed 
the Master Plan, meeting schedule and purpose, architects, and community meeting, 
then introduced John McManus of Altamanu who gave the presentation are attached to 
these minutes. Discussion ensued and Committee questions were answered. 
Refer to the September 11, 2018 minutes for the Altamanu Presentation. 

Public Comment on Designs presented for Old Green Bay Linear Parks:
  Reduce paths, switch grasslands for low maintenance growth, concern over cost  
  Consider alternative material at trail heads, cobblestone is too slippery 
  Route the trail as far from residences as possible 
  Safety at intersections and paths for walkers, bikers, children traveling for school 
  Install path without the expense of doing the “aerating thing”, use the alternative route 
  Avoid Viburnum, Viburnum across the street has the Viburnum borer 
  Do not develop the parks any further. Fine the way they are. We do not want more 

traffic in the parks. 
  Ensure native restoration/perennial beds are manageable in size 
  Consider Invasive species removal along existing brush lines 

Board Feedback/Questions 
  Do we need the sidewalks? 
  Ensure the we don’t recreate the poured in placed areas that maybe attractive to kids 

biking
  Will this project affect drainage conditions? 



2

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Lutton moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:24pm. Commissioner 
Boron seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   

Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04pm and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
      Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Committee Members absent: Erin Classen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
Dudley Onderdonk, Chair/Treasurer  

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Jim Carper, Penny 
Carper, Jay Chmiel, Larry Domont, Sally Domont, Dan Dorfman, Andrew Edelston, 
Adam Hal, Lucia Halvadia, Marla Hand, Bob Kimble, Phil Kiraly, Gary Lee, Todd Marver, 
Klaus Miller-Bergh, Vera Regina Miller-Bergh, Mary B. Motley, Mary G. Motley, Jim 
Nyeste, Scott Padiak, Bernard Rosauer, Jon Ruderman, Roman Schlaeger, Nina 
Schroeder, Steve Schroeder, Eric Sigurdson, Eileen Sirkin, Jack Smyth, Roberta Ury 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public.

Design Review of Old Green Bay Linear Parks: John McManus and Josephine Bellalta 
of Altamanu gave the presentation attached to these minutes. Changes from the first 
plan included changing the entranceways from cobblestone to pavers and taking out the 
walking loop at “sunken park”. President Brooks welcomed community input.

Public Comment on Designs presented for Old Green Bay Linear Parks:
 Comment one:  Can part of the path branch to the east so that we do not have to go 

to entrance to get on pathway, there is an underground river in a section of the park.
 Comment two:  Can you make the camp tent where the pick-up location is a 

permanent building? Likes the splash pad 
 Comment three:  Less is more, way too ambitious, what is the cost of construction 

and ongoing maintenance 
 Comment four:  Grandchildren live in the area and likes the plan that it will be safer 

biking for children 
 Comment five:  Lives in the area, kids like to bike, does not think the park will drive 

in a large amount of people, we have many young families in the area, likes it and 
thinks it is a great idea 

 Comment six:  Lives on Greenleaf, likes the rose garden, how do you know they will 
use path instead of the road 

 Comment seven: Hazel crossing – How are we going to deal with that crossing 



2

 Comment eight: Lives on Maple Hill, intersection a concern, incorporate the 
underground river, go further to the east for the trail, instead of aerating the roots, 
parking questions. 

 Comment nine:  Lives on Maple Hill Road, does not want it to be a designation park 
Favors: Veterans Memorial, improvement in drainage, playground but not much 
larger, train, and rumble bike circuit. Not Favored: Introduction of more hardscape, 
paths, exercise equipment (clutter), taking away informal activity space. 

 Comment ten: Like the plan, path would be great for kids, familiar with the train in 
another community and it caused frustration because it is locked up a lot, how do 
people access it, worried about Maple Hill intersection 

 Comment eleven:  Love activating the area idea, devote time to protecting the tree 
 Comment twelve:  Lives on Denis Lane, talked about bike and walking traffic 
 Comment thirteen: Lives on Madison Street, uses route to take grandchild to school, 

less is more, likes Veterans Memorial Park, parks have a lot of kids, this will attract 
people to buy houses, less pathways so it doesn’t threaten trees. 

 Comment fourteen: Came in without a lot of knowledge on projects, should only do 
things that are must haves, park is a must have, path is redundant not a must have. 

    Many comments questioned the construction and maintenance cost of this project 

Josephine Bellalta presented the estimated project costs. Committee discussion 
ensued.

Capital Projects Discussion:  Executive Director Sheppard informed the Board that they 
will need to make the decision if they want to move forward with the OSLAD grant they 
would need to pass a resolution at the September 17 Regular Board Meeting. The 
project cost for the OSLAD grant project components is approximately $2.3 million. 
Veteran’s Park, professional services, and unknowns would be an additional cost. Once 
the District makes a commitment to move forward with the OSLAD grant by passing the 
resolution at the September 17 Regular Board Meeting and if we are awarded the grant 
then we are committed to completing the project components. Usually the grant applied 
for would be for the full amount; however, if they reduce the grant funds, we would be 
allowed to reduce the scope of the project.

Committee discussion ensued. Bob Kimble indicated that he really liked the plan and 
saw it as an asset for the community. Commissioner Lutton stated that he wanted to be 
clear that the reason he ran for this seat was because he supported an agenda, which 
everyone on this Board already knows. But, he wanted to make sure if we do the trail 
that we do it right and thinks it’s a mistake to put a gravel path through grass. He thinks 
that is just not aesthetically appealing. He said the master plan calls for more walking 
paths and native plantings. He questioned what plantings or landscaping would be 
around that path. Question number two is although he fully understands as well as 
anyone here that the sidewalk is not park district property, he would like to have a 
conversation about if we can work with the Village on one sidewalk or trail.  Executive 
Director Sheppard indicated to the committee that the reason it is a winding path is that 
during the prior brainstorming meetings regarding this park development one of the 
directives was to have a winding path through the park so that it would not encourage 
use by fast bicycles, but more adults with children bicyclist and runners. Parks Director 



3

Leiner indicated that the path has pockets of planting gardens that would be less costly 
to maintain. Commissioner Boron also liked the plan and was in favor of the pathway 
the way it was depicted, leaving the sidewalks. This gives delineation between walkers, 
bikers, etc. She liked the hand-cranked train and thinks there is opportunity for a donor. 
She questioned if we need that many fitness stations. President Brooks was also in 
favor of the plan and is reflective of what was discussed in prior committee meetings. 
She indicated that she was surprised of Josh’s remarks, what would make him go from 
wanting a path to not wanting one.

Discussion ensured regarding the pathways, Board’s past direction for the designs, 
material selection for the grant, and placement of path affecting recreational use of 
current open areas were discussed. 

Executive Director Sheppard stated that if the Board decides to go for the grant, all the 
capital projects in the next two years, with the exception of this playground and the 
pathway, would be deferred for three more years. The linear project system would be 
the only project in the next couple of years. In addition, we have received more calls 
than normal this year, requesting lights at Watts tennis courts, improve drainage in low 
lying parks, and improvements of baseball fields. This is an important project, but know 
that if the project moves forward, all other improvements talked about in the last couple 
years that are infrastructure needs would have to be put off for 2-3 years.

Director Mensinger continued that the OSLAD grant monies must be paid by the District 
and then OSLAD refunds after the project is complete. Funding options were reviewed. 
The items on the 3-Year Capital Projects plan were reviewed and which projects would 
be deferred if the grant project is approved. The Board needs to ask themselves if a 
$400,000 OSLAD grant is worth suspending two years of our capital plan or would 
doing the project in phases would better suit the community. 

Committee discussion ensued; each committee member gave their project viewpoint. 

Chair Brooks, based on the discussion by the committee, directed park district staff to 
move forward with the OSLAD resolution as an action item at the Monday, September 
17 Regular Board Meeting. 

Other Business:  There was no other business.

Adjourn: Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:31pm. Commissioner 
Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



















































“Glencoe officials are seeking suggestions from 
residents on what they would like to see in 
terms of a “legacy gift” as part of the next 
year’s planned celebration of the village’s 
150th anniversary of its incorporation.

The goal is to have some long-lasting gift that 
will remain in place long after the village’s 
sesquicentennial festivities subside.





















































































































































































































Create a Labyrinth & Tell The Story of Glencoe
Lines in the grass each with a different timeline and different local info?









“Unicursal”























DRAFT

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 9:32pm. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Josh Lutton, Commissioner Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Bob Kimble, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
      Erin Maassen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
Commissioners absent:  
Dudley Onderdonk, Treasurer 

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board. 

Oath of Office: Bob Kimble: Board Secretary Lisa Sheppard issued the Oath of Office to 
Robert W. Kimble. 

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Boron to approve the consent 
agenda items as presented including the Open Meetings Act and Freedom of 
Information Act Designees Policy, Board Policy Manual, and Ordinance Code No. 700. 
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote 
taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Kimble, Lutton, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: Onderdonk 
  The motion passed. 

Action Items: 

Bi-Annual Review of Executive Session Minutes:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Boron to approve and keep confidential executive session minutes including July 17, 
2018, and to not Release any minutes from Confidentiality, and to authorize the 
destruction of audio recordings of its closed meetings held on the following dates as to 
which closed meeting official minutes have been approved and no litigation under the 
open meetings act is pending including October 18, 2016, November 15, 2016, January 
17, 2017, and February 28, 2017 as mandated by 5ILCS120/2 (c)(21). Commissioner 
Kimble seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Kimble, Lutton, Brooks 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: Onderdonk 
 The motion passed. 



2

Other Business: There was no other business.

Adjourn: Commissioner Kimble moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:38pm. Commissioner 
Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 







































































V. Approval of Resolution No. 887 – Brad
Janis 20 Years’ Service

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
 BRAD JANIS 20 YEAR SERVICE RESOLUTION No. 887

WHEREAS, Brad Janis was employed by the Glencoe Park District on the staff of the 
Parks and Facilities Team beginning on September 14, 1998; 

WHEREAS, Brad has been a vital part of the Parks and Facilities Team in which he has, 
over the years, provided expert equipment operation, efficient mowing, professional trade 
work and a thoughtful approach to the upkeep of the Glencoe Park District; and 

WHEREAS, his service, passion, and skill as Parks Maintenance has been an asset to the 
Glencoe Park District; and 

WHEREAS, Brad has served the Glencoe Park District in a loyal and faithful manner for 20 
years;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Glencoe Park District Board of 
Commissioners, representing all the residents of the Park District, recognize the 
meritorious service of Brad Janis and record it in the permanent records of the Glencoe 
Park District for all to see. This resolution shall be in full force and in effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

ADOPTED this 17th day of September 2018 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  
NAYS:
ABSTENTIONS:   
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  

        

 Lisa M. Brooks, President 
 Board of Park Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

        

 Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
        

[SEAL]



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 
887:

   BRAD JANIS 20 YEAR SERVICE RESOLUTION No. 887

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 17th day 
of September 2018. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news media 
requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance with the 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and with the 
provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the Board 
has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and said Code and with all of the 
procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the Glencoe 
Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 17th day of September 2018. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners

[SEAL]



VI. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
July 2018

As of As of As of
07/31/2016 07/31/2017 07/31/2018

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 2,237,882 (1) 1,925,354 (1) 2,045,915 (1)
Wages (274,495) (257,490) (270,781)
Contractual (696,772) (750,103) (821,382)
Supplies (50,051) (42,241) (47,128)
     Net Surplus 1,216,564 (1) 875,520 (1) 906,623 (1)

Day Care Department
Revenue 388,233 371,043 455,108
Expense (283,643) (280,931) (354,753)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 104,590 90,112 100,355

Fitness Department
Revenue n/a n/a 17,620
Expense n/a n/a (16,338)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) n/a n/a 1,282

Beach Department
Revenue 234,809 241,094 223,455
Expense (138,018) (134,141) (124,173)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 96,791 106,953 99,282

Boating Department
Revenue 82,776 97,311 86,506
Expense (55,384) (72,341) (88,409)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 27,392 24,970 (1,903)

Beach/Boating Department 
Total: 124,183 131,923 97,379

Watts Department
Revenue 812 2,166 1,369
Expenses (48,640) (52,913) (60,382)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (47,828) (50,747) (59,013)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 12,170 14,360 13,540
Expense (432,874) (475,992) (488,544)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (420,704) (461,632) (475,004)

Parks Department
Revenue 4,908 755 4,039
Expense (427,726) (411,572) (426,228)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (422,818) (410,817) (422,189)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 775,676 855,122 927,127
Expenses (940,189) (1,821,870) (1,243,016)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (164,513) (966,748) (315,889)

(1) Due to the fact that fall registration was held in July two years ago. This year
      and last year, it was held in August.







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
August 2018

As of As of As of
8/31/2016 8/31/2017 8/31/2018

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 2,352,382 2,426,877 2,505,008
Wages (358,639) (372,949) (391,244)
Contractual (880,147) (870,875) (856,970)
Supplies (57,433) (55,290) (60,300)
     Net Surplus 1,056,163 1,127,763 1,196,494

Day Care Department
Revenue 443,834 438,788 547,226
Expense (341,573) (343,636) (456,682)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 102,261 95,152 90,544

Fitness Department
Revenue n/a n/a 18,940
Expense n/a n/a (19,382)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) n/a n/a (442)

Beach Department
Revenue 305,821 305,778 314,498
Expense (174,894) (177,028) (171,606)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 130,927 128,750 142,892

Boating Department
Revenue 91,278 102,181 93,051
Expense (70,832) (91,127) (110,119)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 20,446 11,054 (17,068)

Beach/Boating Dept Total: 151,373 139,804 125,824

Watts Department
Revenue 1,037 2,961 1,746
Expenses (58,189) (70,792) (73,038)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (57,152) (67,831) (71,292)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 14,515 17,240 16,405
Expense (520,240) (564,112) (596,835)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (505,725) (546,872) (580,430)

Parks Department
Revenue 4,808 755 4,039
Expense (507,941) (533,592) (550,001)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (503,133) (532,837) (545,962)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 1,050,738 1,088,648 1,128,949
Expenses (1) (1,084,264) (1,973,677) (1,421,209)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (33,526) (885,029) (292,260)

(1) Includes Fund 69 transfer for future Master Plan projects



VII. Presentation by Friends of the Green Bay
Trail on SOSA Project

No Documents

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



VIII. Presentation of the 2018 Summer Camp
Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



220188 Summmeer Caamp Rep

Glencoe
Septem

Stepha
C

port

Park District
ber 17, 2018
ani Briskman
Chris Pietrini

Jess Stockl



Cont
Conte

Introd

Camp

Marke

Staffin

Chang

2018

Plann

Custo

Appen

Appen

Appen

Appen

Appen

tents
ents ..............

duction.........

p Descriptions

eting and Pro

ng and Staff T

ges Made for

Year In Revie

ing for Summ

omer Feedbac

ndices:

ndix A – Parti

ndix B – Finan

ndix C – Cam

ndix D – Mark

.....................

.....................

s and Overvie

omotion ........

Training ........

the 2018 Cam

ew ………………

mer 2018.......

ck and Survey

icipation Data

ncial Data

p Schedules

keting Mater

.....................

.....................

ew .................

.....................

.....................

mp Season ……

……………………

.....................

y Results........

a

ials

.................. 1

.................. 2

.................. 3

.................. 5

.................. 6

………………..7

………………….8

................ 10

................ 11

20018 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 1

t



Intro
The G
partic
swim
theme
grow,

This s
progr
and c
appro
proce
2018
servic

The ca
a wee
full sc
June 1
Augus
week
End c

Our c
overa
headi
goals
provid
the re

P
ex
Ex
q
P
B
o
C
ca
Se
fa
Id
d

oduction
Glencoe Park D
cipants 2 to 1
ming, crafts,
e days. Camp
, learn, discov

ummer could
am. There we
amp director

oach and enha
edures and ne
had a new an

ce and comm

amp season l
ek of Summer
chedule of cam
18 and ran ei
st 10. The cam
of August 13
amps.

amp staff had
arching goals t
ng into the 2
were created
ding an excep
esidents of Gl

rovide a safe
xperience for
xceed campe
uality progra
rovide activit
e flexible and
r planned act
ontinue to de
ancellations
eek opportun
amilies throug
dentify and ov
ecrease the le

District summ
6 years old. A
nature aware

ps are structu
ver, and, mos

d be describe
ere a number
s. With staff
ance the cam
ew field trips
nd innovative
unication tha

aunched on J
r’s Beginning
mp offerings
ght weeks th
mp season co
3 17 with the

d a number o
that were ear
018 camp sea
d with a vison
ptional experi
encoe.

and fun cam
r every partici
r and parent
mming
ies that enga

d solution orie
tivities
evelop our ma

nities to conti
gh open lines
vercome barr
evel of servic

mer camp pro
A variety of ac
eness, games,
red to provid

st importantly

d as a year of
r of new part
new in their p

mp program. F
like The Chica

e feel while at
at have existe

June 11 with
camps. The
began on
rough

oncluded the
Summer’s

of
rmarked
ason. The
n of
ience for

p
ipant
expectations

ge the campe
ented when w

arketing/PR s

nue to build a
s of communi
riers and road
e provided

ograms provid
ctivities take
, sports, spec
e opportunit

y, to have fun

f successful tr
time staff inc

positions, it p
From small de
ago Shakespe
t the same tim
d in previous

s with the hig

er and offer a
weather or ot

strategies to i

authentic rela
cation
dblocks that m

20

de a wide sele
place in a typ

cial events, fie
ies for childre

n within their

ransition for t
cluding couns

provided the o
etails like dro
eare Theatre,
me, maintaini
s years.

hest levels of

a variety of ex
ther factors d

increase enro

ationships be

may hinder ca

018 Summer C

ection of expe
pical camp we
eld trips, cook
en to make n
surroundings

the summer c
selors, head c
opportunity t
p off and pic
the camp ex

ing the high s

f customer se

xperiences
dictate a chan

ollment and m

etween staff,

amp participa

Camp Report

P a g e | 2

eriences for
eek, including
kouts, and
ew friends,
s.

camp
counselors,
to take a fresh
k up

xperience in
standards of

ervice and

nge in schedu

minimize

campers, and

ation or

t

g

h

le

d



Cam
The G
summ
that p
reaso
exper
neces
in age
taken
and th

In add
additi
a mea
sign u
every
The se
Assoc
coord
a disa
servic
Schol
financ

The fo
summ

Summ
These
camp
accom
exper
kinde
time w
to las

Presc
These
camp
camp
instill
includ
by pre

mp Descript
Glencoe Park D
mer camps for
parents sign t
ns such as so

riences, the o
ssity for childc
e offerings, tim

into conside
he need to ac

dition to thes
ional services
al option to a
up online to h
y day in lieu of
ervices of the
ciation were a
dinates with t
ability or spec
ces, behavior
arship Progra
cial barrier to

ollowing is a b
mary of what

mer’s Beginni
e two camps s
s are offered

mmodate par
rience early o
rgarten up th
when camp is
er tag.

hool Summe
e programs al
by a week fo
. The children
ing confidenc
ding crossing
eparing our li

tions and O
District puts a
r children of a
heir children

ocial developm
pportunity fo
care during th
me offerings,

eration the co
ccommodate

e description
s. This summe
ll campers. Th

have a lunch d
f sending the
e North Subur
also offered fo
he Glencoe P

cial needs. Ad
management

am was availa
o participation

brief descript
participants c

ing and Summ
serve as the “
the week pri
ents that nee
r extend it lat

hrough fifth g
s not customa

r’s Beginning
low parents t

or children 3 5
n had visitors
ce in the youn
the street an
ttle ones for

Overview
an emphasis o
all ages. Staff
up for camp

ment, exposu
or adventure,
he summer m
and weeks o

onstantly evol
many differe

ns, all camps o
er North Shor
his service all
delivered to t
m with a trad
rban Special R
or every cam

Park District to
ditionally, NS
t, and disabil

able to provid
n.

tion of each c
can expect.

mer’s End Cam
“bookends” to
ior to and the
ed childcare d
ter into the s
rade and pro
arily offered.

g and Summe
to add a week
5. Summer’s
including a li

ng campers th
d sign recogn
safety during

on providing
has acknowl
for a variety
re to new
or simply ou

months. The v
of camp offere
ving family sc

ent situations

offered a num
re Catering pr
owed parent
heir child at c
ditional sack l
Recreation
p. NSSRA
o provide inc
SSRA staff led
ity awareness

de an opportu

amp includin

mps
o the traditio
e week after t
during those w
eason. These
vide them a t
Fieldtrips inc

er’s End Camp
k before the s
Beginning foc
ifeguard and
hrough expos
nition. Summe
g the school y

20

edged
of

ut of the
variety
ed have
chedule
.

mber of
rovided
ts to
camp
lunch.

lusion compa
d a camp train
s. Finally, the
unity for recre

g age demog

onal summer c
the regular ca
weeks or that
e programs se
traditional ca
cluded waterp

ps
start of camp
cused on safe
a crossing gu

sure to safety
er’s End cont

year.

018 Summer C

anions for any
ning session o
e Glencoe Par
eation for any

graphic served

camp program
amp season t
t want to star
erve participa
mp experien
parks, bowlin

p and to exten
ety as they pr
uard. This cam
y related topic
tinued the saf

Camp Report

P a g e | 3

y camper with
on inclusion
k District
yone with a

d and a

m. These
o
rt the camp
nts from
ce during a

ng, and a trip

nd the end of
repared for
mp focuses on
cs and places
fety educatio

t

h

f

n
s
n



Panda
The “

These
enviro
and se
Camp
days a

Kinde
Geare
cooki
from

at 8:4
water
activit
camp
assign

Actio
Action
of sixt
aspec
alway
day, e
the W
Cubs
Amer
for sw
spend
tents.

a and Koala B
bear themed

Panda Bea
Koala Bear

e camps utiliz
onment focus
ensitivity nee

p and takes th
assist in a sm

er Korner Cam
ed for camper
ng, singing, g
9:00am 1:00

45am with dro
rparks, arcade
ties planned a
ers should be
ned groups. T

n Quest Cam
n Quest Camp
th through ni
ct of this prog
ys “on the go”
except for 4 d

Watts Center b
Game, nume
ica. This cam

wimming and
d two overnig
. Camp runs d

Bear Camps
” preschool c

ar Camp: Age
r Camp: Age 4

e a mixture o
sed on child d
eded for youn
he extra step o
ooth transitio

mp
rs entering ki
ames, and cr
pm. Staff take

op off. From t
es, profession
and executed
e worn out fro
The camp incl

p
p serves the o
nth graders. T

gram is advert
”. Action Que
days, away fro
by going on fi
rous waterpa
p also visits t
paddle board

ght outings at
daily from 9:1

camps serve t

2 3 (9:00 11:
4 (9:00am 1:0

of seasonal sta
development
ng campers. K
of exposing c
on to prescho

ndergarten in
afts based on
e campers on

there, campe
nal sporting e
d by the seaso
om an action
udes two ove

older camp po
The most pop
tising a camp

est campers sp
om their hom
eld trips that

arks, and even
he beach onc
ding and also
t the beach ca
15am 3:15pm

the following

:30am daily)
00pm daily)

aff and presc
. The Panda B

Koala Camp of
campers to of
ool as well as

n fall, this cam
n a weekly the
n field trips to

weekly b
camp, as
the optio
needed o

Sun Fun
Sun Fun
camps of
program
third gra
(Camp A

ers are then o
events, or a da
onal camp sta
packed day o

ernighters at t

opulation
pular
that is

pent every
e base at

t include a
n Great
ce a week
tries to

amping in
m.

20

age groups:

hool teacher
Bear Camp un
ffers a slightly
ff site field tri
preparing for

mp offers a va
eme. The Kin
o visit the bea
basis. The “sta
s well as the K
on to extend
or desired.

Camp & Cam
and Camp Ad
f the Glencoe

ms serve partic
ade (Sun Fun)
Adventure). A
ff to a field tr
ay around the
aff. By the en
of activities w
the Takiff Cen

018 Summer C

s to ensure a
nderstands th
y longer day t
ips. The short
r full day kind

ariety of activ
der Korner Ca

ach or a splas
ay and play” o
Koala Camp, g
their day unt

mp Adventure
dventure are
e Park District
cipants in firs
and fourth a
normal camp

rip to places l
e Takiff Cente
d of the day a

with their frie
nter.

Camp Report

P a g e | 4

safe
he attention
than Panda
tened camp
dergarten.

vities includin
amp day runs
h pad on a
option for thi
gives camper
til 3:00pm if

e
the signature
t. These
st through
and fifth grade
p day begins
ike
er full of
at 3:00pm,
nds in their

t

ng
s

is
rs

e

e



Couns
The C
to pro
activit
partic
Glenc
now r
simila
assign
all of
charg
opera
mento
direct
streng
goals,
positi

Mar
A sign
wide
year,
broch
optio

Camp
Novem
was m
Glenc
atten
also in
page
adver

Paid a
fundr

Throu
video
pages
line so
feeds
deplo

selor In Train
CIT camp com
oviding the pa
ties, this cam
cipants for a p
coe Park Distr
receive trainin
ar to that of th
ned to head c
the Glencoe
ed with assis

ations. In turn
orship. CITs r
tor at the end
gths and area
, in order to b
on in the futu

keting and
nificant amou
variety of sum
a 10 page de

hures. Residen
ns and early b

p registration
mber. An ear

marketed usin
coe Park Distr
dees were giv
ncluded camp
mailer with a
rtising camp r

ads were inclu
aiser book, a

ughout the su
s and images
s to promote
oftware to po
. Parents cou

oy and autom

ning (CIT)
bines a hybri
articipants of
p also puts a

possible job o
rict once they
ng at the beg
he camp coun
counselors an
Park District c
ting the camp

n, camp staff
eceive an eva

d of the sessio
as to improve
become the id
ure.

d Promotio
unt of time an
mmer camp o
etailed camp g
nts were enco
bird discount

began two w
ly bird discou

ng email blast
rict website, T
ven flyers at e
p articles in th
a variety of pr
registration, w

uded in the G
nd in the Chic

ummer, we ut
s from the cam
the program,

ost emergenc
ld also sign u
atically sent a

d of camper e
this camp a f
focus on pre

on the camp s
y are sixteen y
inning of the
nselors. CITs a
d camp grou
camps based
p staff in daily
provides feed
aluation from
on highlightin
e upon, as we
deal candidat

on
nd energy is p
offerings offe
guide was pu
ouraged to lo
s.

weeks after th
unt was offere
ts, flyers, and
TV system, an
events, which
he summer G
rogramming o
was also on d

Glencoe PTO f
cago North Sh

tilized Instagr
mp day. We a
, with links to

cy notices qui
p for text ale
alerts to the w

experiences a
fun and enjoy
paring

staff team at t
years of age.
season more
are then
ps spread acr
out of Takiff

y camp
dback and

m the camp
ng personal
ll as weekly
te for a camp

laced into pro
red each year
blished in bot

ook online for

e winter prog
ed from Nove
posters. Info

nd on sponsor
h were also di
Glencoe Quart
options sent t
isplay in the T

fundraiser bo
hore & Visito

ram Live, Face
also posted im
o our camp we
ckly on the D

erts from raino
website, Face

20

and camp sta
yable summe

the
CITs
e

ross
and

operly marke
r through the
th the winter
r specific cam

gram guide w
ember 30 thro
ormation was
red social me
istributed to
terly and the
to residents. A
Takiff Center

ook, Family Se
r’s Bureau 20

ebook Live, a
mages on Inst
ebsite. Once

District’s web
out line. The

ebook, and Tw

018 Summer C

ff experience
er of field trip

eting and pro
e Glencoe Par
r and spring/s

mp details, inc

was mailed in
ough Februar
s also posted
edia posts. Sp
program part
Summer Sam
A six foot ban
lobby.

ervice of Glen
018 Guide.

nd Snapchat
tagram and Fa
again, we use
page and soc
system is eas

witter.

Camp Report

P a g e | 5

es. In addition
s and

mpting the
rk District. Th
summer
luding sessio

late
ry 28, which
on the

pecial event
ticipants. Staf

mpler, a 4
nner,

ncoe’s

to share brief
acebook
ed the rainou
cial media
sy for staff to

t

n

is

n

ff

f

ut



At the
to fue

Staff
The G
memb
direct
respo
with p
are on
for th
solve
staff m
focus
camp
keep

2018
Su
R
C
A
C

A larg
throu
Recre
full ti
Addit
to add

Camp
aid, re
provid

e end of the s
el future mark

fing and St
Glencoe Park D
bers. This sum
tors, head cou
onsible for the
parents throu
nsite day in a
e oversight o
throughout t

members tha
is to develop
ers, provide a
safety at the

Camp Directo
un Fun: Cristi
osenfeld
amp Adventu
ction Quest:
ounselor In T

ge focus of tim
gh over 16 ho

eation and Fac
me team. We
ionally, staff
dress issues o

p staff is not o
eporting, cam
de memorabl

summer, a su
keting pieces

taff Trainin
District prides
mmer, our ca
unselors, and
e day to day l
ughout the da
nd day out. H

of the camp co
the day, as we
t interact wit

p strong relati
a fun summe
forefront.

ors
na Pepe and

ure: Dana Bae
Drew Suchsla

Training (CITs)

me and effort
ours of trainin
cilities, Execu
e also invited
had weekly m
or concerns th

only trained o
mper supervis
le experience

rvey was sent
. Please see A

ng
s itself on hir
mp staff inclu

d counselors.
lesson planni
ay. The camp
Head counselo
ounselors. He
ell as provide
th the campe
ionships with
r, and always

Liza

er
and
): Jon Pranian

t is spent on p
ng that is pre

utive Director,
Sarah Kurtz M

meetings to re
hat come up t

on Glencoe Pa
ion, and prop

es for camper

t to all parent
Appendix B fo

ing hardwork
uded over 65
Camp directo
ng of the cam
directors are
ors report to
ead counselor
e mentoring a
rs on a consta

s

n

preseason tra
sented by the
, and other m
McKinnon to
efresh topics
throughout t

ark District ca
per interactio
s. For examp

games,
during t
parents,
with cam
so that c
they wil
a combi
group a
and role

20

ts, which will
or samples of

king, motivate
individuals w

ors, with the f
mp program a
e the primary
the camp dir
rs work to he

and feedback.
ant basis thro

aining. All cam
e full time ma

members of th
speak about
discussed at
he week.

amp procedur
on with campe
le, camp staff
how to keep
transitions, ho
, and ways to
mpers. The tr
camp staff ca
ll be working
ination of a P
ctivities, hand
e playing scen

018 Summer C

utilize paren
marketing m

ed, and energ
working as sea
full time staff
as well as com
leadership po

rectors and ar
elp counselors
. Camp couns
oughout the s

mp staff mem
anagers, Dire
he Glencoe Pa
camp counse
the preseaso

res including
ers, but also w
ff are taught i
campers ent
ow to interac
o develop rela
raining is also
an get familia
at. The traini

PowerPoint pr
ds on practic
narios.

Camp Report

P a g e | 6

nt comments
materials.

getic staff
asonal camp
f, are

mmunication
ositions that
re responsible
s problem
selors are the
summer. The

bers go
ector of
ark District
elor skills.
on training or

safety, first
ways to
nnovative
ertained

ct with
ationships
o site specific,
r with the site
ing consists o
resentation,
e, discussion,

t

e

e
ir

e
of

,



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 7

In addition to basic camp training, camp staff attend the summer employee orientation led by
Executive Director Lisa Sheppard. At this training, Lisa welcomed staff to the Glencoe Park
District team, explained the SPIRIT values that embody the agency, and impressed upon the
staff the importance of their roles. The camp directors and head counselors also attended a five
hour leadership staff training this season. In this training, the leadership staff was exposed to
many challenging scenarios they would face this summer including staff discipline, dealing with
upset patrons/participants, creating a culture of accountability, and success among the
counselors. To kick off the summer, we invited Eddie Slowikowski to speak to our staff. Eddie
inspired our staff to make meaningful connections with the children we are working with each
day.

Changes Made for the 2018 Camp Season
Each year, Glencoe Park District staff examines and analyzes the successes and areas of
improvement from the most recent camp season in an effort to constantly improve the
experience for every camper and family.

Kinder Korner & Bear Camps
Under the direction of Early Childhood Program Manager Jessica Stockl, the Bear Camps saw
changes in a variety of areas. There were a number of new field trips that were booked for Koala
and Kinder Korner Camps. Some of these field trips included exploring different Glencoe parks
as well as a trip to Medieval Times. These new field trips kept the camp fresh and kept kids
excited about coming to camp every day.

Other changes that were implemented were based off of survey results collected in 2017. We
added AM and PM care options for our younger campers. Pandas and Koalas had the
opportunity to attend AM care from 7:00 9:00am, which gave working parents and families with
early risers the chance to extend their camp day. Koala campers were also able to attend PM
care from 3:00 6:00pm.

Sun Fun Camp and Camp Adventure
Under the direction of Arts and Youth Program Manager Stephani Briskman, Sun Fun and Camp
Adventure saw changes in a variety of areas. New field trips, Camp Adventure Clubs, and special
guests were added to keep the campers excited about coming to camp each day.

New field trips were added such as a trip to the Chicago Dogs baseball game, Roosevelt Aquatic
Center, and the Mobile Escape room. We added a new special event day, Chicago Sports Day
giving campers new and different opportunities to dress up and have fun. We also had the
Chicago Blackhawks inflatable hockey rink visit us at camp.

Continuing for Camp Adventure for the summer of 2018, we offered clubs. Campers chose
activities based on their interests to participate in 2 week intervals. This allowed the Camp
Adventure campers to design their own schedules while Camp Adventure was on site.



Actio
Our M
Couns
its po
comp
partic
in 201

Staff e
them
Roose

For Co
camp
oppos
lead g

2018

Bear C
These
to qua
positi
staff m
Kinde
This g
creati
specif

One o
day o
progr
reacti
over a
they h
summ
round
camp
a won
about

With
camp

n Quest Cam
Manager of At
selor In Train
pularity and t

parison to oth
cipants the pa
16 to 50 in 20

eliminated Ho
with trips to

evelt Pool in G

ounselor In T
training and

sed to bi wee
games and he

8 Year in R

Camps & Kin
e camps mean
ality program
ve this year,
members serv
ergarten Enric
group of staff
ive expression
fic goals of pr

of the most m
f the summer
amming and
ions of the ca
and they mus
have become

mer programm
d preschool w
season inclu

nderful time o
t the world ar

the experienc
program for

p & Counselo
thletics, Sport
ning camps. A
track record o
er local teen

ast 3 years to
017 and then

ot Ground Gy
Vernon Hills

Glenview.

Training, more
meetings wit

ekly. This was
elp in addition

Review – H

der Korner
n big fun for l

mming that ch
much like oth
ve as Glencoe
chment teach
was able to p
n times, and g
romoting frien

memorable da
r. The impact
activities is re

ampers when
st part ways w
e so close. A h
ming is eviden
with the Park
ded new field
on these field
round them.

ced staff, and
these young

or In Training
ts and Teen C

Action Quest C
of success, ho
camps, Winn
18 participan
down to 15 in

ym, Glenview
Waterpark, C

e of the camp
th our camp d
a very strong

nal ways than

ighlights a

ittle campers
aracterizes th

her summers,
e Park District

hers during th
plan a mix of
games. Staff
ndships, learn

ays for this ca
t of a great su
ecognized thr
they realize t

with staff and
highlight of th
nt as families
District based
d trips to Med
d trips as they

d a full summ
participants

g
Camps Chris P
Camp saw on
owever 2018
netka Park Dis
nts in 2018 an
n 2018.

Ice Center, a
Centennial Aq

p staff trainin
director. Part
g class of CIT’
n past groups

and Popula

s ages two thr
he school yea
, is the experi
t Preschool a
e school year
outdoor play
lesson plans w
ning, and fun

mp was the l
ummer of
rough the
that the seas
friends to w
e exceptiona
enroll in year

d on their cam
dieval Times a
y were to part

er of age app
creates a gre

20

Pietrini, overs
ly minor chan
participation
strict dropped
nd Glenview w

and Par King M
quatic Center

g was integra
ticipant goals
’s and more o
.

ar Activitie

rough five an
ar early childh
ienced camp
nd
r.
y,
with
.

ast

on is
hich

al
r

mp experienc
and the Linco
take in new e

propriate outi
eat introductio

018 Summer C

saw Action Qu
nges from 20
n dropped fro
d from an ave
went from 28

Mini Golf, and
r in Park Ridge

ated in to bot
were also se

of them volun

es

nd reflect the
hood program
counselors. M

e. Other high
oln Park Zoo.
experiences a

ings and activ
on to Glencoe

Camp Report

P a g e | 8

uest and
17 because o

om 78 to 54. I
erage of 43
8 participants

d replaced
e, and

th the pre
t weekly as

nteered to

commitment
ms. A glowing
Many of these

hlights of the
Campers had
nd learn mor

vities, the
e Park Distric

t

of
n

s

t
g
e

d
re

ct



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 9

programs. With the use of a safe, nurturing environment and a play based learning approach,
the early childhood camps are very well received by the community!

Sun Fun Camp and Camp Adventure
A highlight of these two camps every year is the “camper’s choice” set of activities. These times
allow for campers to break up into groups and spend time doing activities that specific groups of
campers enjoy which might include sports, crafts, or other special interest games. Another
highlight is the Sun Fun Camp swim lessons. These swim lessons, built into the cost of the
program, utilize the Recreation Center in Highland Park for swim lessons for first, second, and
third graders.

Sun Fun’s field trips are another highlight of a busy camp schedule. Trips to Glencoe Beach,
waterparks, bowling, Lincoln Park Zoo, and much more add variety and excitement to each week
of camp. Camp Adventure also goes on trips, which include Action Territory, Rainbow Falls
Waterpark, Cubs game, and more. A camp favorite is the overnighter at Takiff Center, which
takes place after the regular camp day and includes evening entertainment, dinner, movie, and
special activities.

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure had a large amount of returning staff, which provided an
opportunity for those staff to mentor the new staff. This summer, the camp staff was able to
build upon the bonds made from previous summers, which made a strong impact in a customer
service aspect towards the parents.

When analyzing camp enrollment numbers, grade size is positively correlated. Generally when a
grade size grows or reduces, so does camp enrollment. This summer the incoming 3rd grade was
smaller than the incoming 1st and 2nd grades, leading to a shift in enrollment. Sun Fun’s
enrollment increased by 13, while Camp Adventure’s enrollment was in line with last summer,
as campers aged out of Sun Fun and moved in to Camp Adventure.

Sun Fun was able to manage some additional expenses that occurred in 2017. We utilized the
Park District bus to transport summer school campers . We also worked closely with the Park
District of Highland Park to restore our original swim times, which decreased our bus rental
expenses.

Action Quest Camp & Counselor In Training
The Action Quest Camp has the reputation of being a “traveling camp” with off site activities
planned every day but Thursdays. The highlight is generally the overnight beach campouts at
Glencoe Beach that take place once every four week session. The campers go kayaking and
paddle boarding, make a fire, and spend the night sleeping in tents on the beach. Unfortunately
we had poor weather (rain for the first, 90+ degree heat for the second) on each campout night,
leading to decreased participation.

Another very popular trip is Great America, which is planned for each four week session. On this
day, campers have an extended day so they can spend more time at the theme park. Along with
the Camp Adventure campers, the Action Quest Camp headed to Wrigley Field on July 25.



Action
partic
seeing

The C
two “
CIT’s
and z

Plan
After
staff i
camp
proce
the cu
will w
consis
persp

Below

Bears

Sun F

Actio

n Quest had j
cipants who w
g how camp o

Counselor In T
CIT only” field
loved going o
ip line.

nning for Su
a fun and suc
s able to look
experience b

edural perspe
ustomer expe

work with one
stency in cam

pective regard

w are some of

s Camps and K
Extend the
Offer more
Provide Ki
transition
Provide fle

un Camp and
Research o
Research o
Add at leas
Review an
half of the

n Quest Cam
AQ – Chan
has many
AQ – Cons
games, act
CIT – Cont
season tra

ust over half
were returnin
operates day

Training (CIT)
d trips as a re

on their own f

ummer 20
ccessful 2018
k for ways to
both from an
ctive as well

erience. Wher
e another to d
mp procedure
dless of age o

f the changes

Kinder Korne
e trainings for
e in house vis
nder Korner c
for the follow

exible pick up

d Camp Adve
other swim le
options for sw
st two new fi
d work to im
camp season

p & CIT
nge to one we
outside optio
ider themed
tion/adventu
inue to integ
inings that ar

of the staff r
g from camp
to day.

program is b
eward for the
field trips, pa

019
8 camp season
improve the
internal and
as to improve
re possible, st
develop more
s from a pare
r type of cam

s that staff wi

er Camp
r staff to inclu
sitors and ent
campers the o
wing summer

times for pa

nture
essons locatio
wim lessons fo
eld trips and
prove the tra
n

eek options to
ons
options for e
re
rate more tra
re shorter in l

eturning, wh
the previous

based out of T
ir hard work
rticularly to B

n,

e
taff

e
ent

mp.

ll be investiga

ude more ear
tertainers for
opportunity t

rents with ca

ons and optio
or Camp Adve
eliminate the
nsition from

o provide incr

ach of the we

aining into the
length

20

ich provided
s years, and a

Takiff Center.
and help thro

Bartlett Wate

ating this win

rly childhood
r our younger
to visit Sun Fu

mpers in mu

ns for Sun Fu
enture campe
e least popula
summer scho

reased flexibi

eeks, for exam

e program th

018 Summer C

continuity to
ided in the ne

The CIT cam
oughout the s

erpark with th

nter.

specific train
r campers
un camp to p

ltiple program

un campers
ers
ar ones
ool to camps

ility for this ag

mple, waterp

rough additio

Camp Report

P a g e | 10

o those
ew staff

pers go on
summer. The

heir lazy river

ings

romote the

ms

for the first

ge group that

parks, sports

onal mid

t

e

t



All Ca

Cust
At the
feedb
This y
and a
from

Score

amps
Get Glenco
the beach
the sun
Investigate
the day
Continue t
counselors

tomer Feed
e end of each
back that is us
year, 97 camp
nalyzed using
the registrati

s from this su

oe Park Distri
making camp

e the use of t

to improve th
s during winte

dback and
season, a su

sed to improv
p participants
g www.Surve
on process, t

urvey were co

ict issued rash
pers more vis

echnology to

he counselor
er break to p

Survey Re
rvey is sent to
ve and make c
completed t
yMonkey.com
o staff, facilit

onsistent with

h guards for a
ible and iden

send picture

in training pr
rovide input f

esults
o the families
changes to th
he survey (80
m. Camp part
ties, activities

h years past.

20

all campers to
ntifiable as we

es and update

rogram. Hold
for improvem

s of all the ca
he camp prog
0 in 2017), wh
ticipants were
s, field trips, a

018 Summer C

o wear at wat
ell as offer pr

es to parents

a focus group
ment

mp participa
gram the follo
hich is created
e asked quest
and overall ex

Camp Report

P a g e | 11

ter parks and
otection from

throughout

p with

nts to solicit
owing year.
d, distributed
tions ranging
xperience.

t

m

d,



20018 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 12

t



20018 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 13

t



20018 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 14

t



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 15

Appendix A – Camp Participation Information



1

1

2

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

1

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

10

20

30

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

0

50

100

150

200

20

Bear Ca

0

20

40

60

80

100

20

0

00

00

00

2016

62

1

Sa

016

193

amps (Te

016

70

Kind

6 201

59

194

Yea

fety Tow
Begin

2017

179

Year

eddy, Pa

2017

100

Year

er Korne

17 20

46

206

ar

wn & Sum
nning/En

20

2018

15

anda, Ko

2018

96

er

018

6

132

mmer's
nd

018 Summer C

8

58

oala)

8

6

Safety T

Camp Report

P a g e | 16

Town

t



1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n

1
1

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

184
186
188
190
192
194
196
198
200

20

0
20
40
60
80

100
120

20

016

199

Su

016

69

Camp

2017

190

Year

un Fun

2017

105

Year

Advent

20

2018

19

2018

97

ure

018 Summer C

8

92

8

7

Camp Report

P a g e | 17

t



0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

C

1
1

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

2016

44

77

Counselo

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

2

Ov

2017

43

7

Year

or In Tra

2016

920

erall Cam

7 20

46

78

r

aining &

2017

1136

Year

mp Enro

20

18

54

Action Q

2018

11

ollments

018 Summer C

Quest

C.I.T.

Action Q

8

195

s

Camp Report

P a g e | 18

Quest

t



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 19

Appendix B – Financial Information



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 20

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $100,635 $79,804 $82,617
Expense $45,751 $35,625 $40,201
Net $54,884 $44,179 $42,416

$25,000
$35,000
$45,000
$55,000
$65,000
$75,000
$85,000
$95,000

$105,000

Bear Camps Financial Trends

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $51,283 $82,089 $76,245
Expense $22,456 $36,409 $41,606
Net $28,827 $45,680 $34,639

$0
$10,000
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$70,000
$80,000
$90,000

Kinder Korner Financial Trends



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 21

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $5,678 $5,626 $5,942
Expense $1,802 $1,874 $3,033
Net $3,876 $3,752 $2,909

$100
$1,100
$2,100
$3,100
$4,100
$5,100

Preschool Summer Beginning
Financial Trends

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $49,563 $55,321 $57,942
Expense $9,494 $16,960 $16,600
Net $40,069 $38,361 $41,342

$0
$10,000
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$70,000

Summer's Beginning/End Financial Trends



R
E
N

$2
$3
$4
$5
$6
$7
$8
$9

$10
$11
$12

2
Revenue
Expense
Net

20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
00,000
10,000
20,000

Camp A

2016 Actual
$66,452
$43,017
$23,435

Adventu

2017 A
$96,9
$61,0
$35,8

ure Finan

20

Actual 2
914
044
870

ncial Tre

018 Summer C

2018 Projected
$97,097
$52,000
$45,097

ends

Camp Report

P a g e | 22

d

t



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 23

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $106,610 $109,074 $82,171
Expense $51,303 $56,397 $36,810
Net $55,307 $52,677 $45,361

$25,000
$35,000
$45,000
$55,000
$65,000
$75,000
$85,000
$95,000

$105,000

Action Quest Financial Trends

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $31,312 $30,313 $29,904
Expense $5,850 $7,526 $6,582
Net $25,462 $22,787 $23,322

$2,000
$7,000

$12,000
$17,000
$22,000
$27,000
$32,000

C.I.T Financial Trends

2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Revenue $645,836 $716,442 $750,886
Expense $308,953 $376,676 $350,000
Net $336,883 $339,766 $400,886

$0
$100,000
$200,000
$300,000
$400,000
$500,000
$600,000
$700,000
$800,000

Overall Camp Financial Trends



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 24

Appendix C – Camp Schedules



MMon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
June 11-15      

11 
Pinstripes Bowling 

Field Trip 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pizza lunch  
provided; bring socks 
for bowling wear GPD 

camp shirt  
(if possible)! 

12  
Laser Quest 

Field Trip 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pizza lunch pro-
vided; wear gym shoes 
for laser tag; wear GPD 

camp shirt  
(if possible) 

13 
Nickel City 
Field Trip 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pizza lunch provid-
ed;  wear gym shoes for 

laser tag; wear GPD 
camp shirt  
(if possible) 

14 
Hawaiian Day! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Chicken Fingers 
and Macaroni lunch 

provided. Pack towel, 
sunscreen, wear GPD 
camp shirt (if possible); 

15 
Beach Day 
Field Trip 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pack towel, sun-
screen, wear GPD camp 

shirt (if possible); 
 
 

Summer’s Beginning Camp  

Camp Directors: 
Ashley and Riley 
Contact Information 
847-835-3030 
Program Manager: Stephani Briskman 
847-835-7536 or sbriskman@glencoeparkdistrict.com 

Summer’s Beginning is an exciting way to start off summer camp! Each day children will also participate in sports, 
gym games, arts & crafts, and more! Please send your child with a water bottle and sunscreen labeled with their name 

each day.  AM & PM Care is in Community Room 4.  
Regular Drop-Off: 8:45am; at Takiff Center Bleachers;  Pick-Up: 3:00pm; at Takiff Center Bleachers 



MMon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
August 13-17      

13 
Wheeling Water 

Park 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pack towel, 
sunscreen, wear GPD 

camp shirt (if possi-
ble) 

14  
Pinstripes Bowling Field 

Trip 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pizza lunch  
provided; bring socks for 

bowling, wear GPD 
camp shirt (if possible) 

15 
Sports Day! 

 
 
 
 
 

Note: Wear your favorite 
sports gear while partici-
pating in many activities 
around Watts! We will 
also be making a Rice 

Krispie treat 

16 
Beach Day Field 

Trip 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Pack towel, sun-
screen, wear GPD 

camp shirt (if possible) 
 
 

17 
AMC Theatres Field 

Trip 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Popcorn snack pro-
vided. Wear GPD camp 

shirt (if possible) 

Summer’s End Camp  

Head Camp Staff 
Ashley and Riley 
Contact Information 
847-835-3030 
Program Manager: Stephani Briskman 
847-835-7536 or sbriskman@glencoeparkdistrict.com 

Summer’s End is an exciting way to end your summer!! Each day children will also participate in sports, gym games, 
arts & crafts, and more! Please send your child with a water bottle and sunscreen labeled with their name each day.  

AM & PM Care is in in the Program Room at Watts.  
Regular Drop-Off: 8:45am; at Watts;  Pick-Up: 3:00pm; at Watts 

**Lunch is provided on days indicated on the calendar** 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/18 
Orientation: 
10-10:45am 

 
 

 
 
6/19 

First Full 
Day of 
Camp! 

 
 
6/20 

 

 
 
6/21 

Skokie  
Exploratorium  

10-12 
Wear camp shirt 

 

 
 
6/22 

 
 

6/25 
 

6/26 
Tots & Tunes  

10-10:45 

06/27 6/28 
 

6/29  
Super Stolie 

Music  
performance 

10am  
 
 

07/02 
 
 
 
 
 

7/3 
Local Park 

Trip 
 
 
 

Wear camp 
t-shirt 

 
 

7/4 
 

No Camp  
 

Happy July 4th! 

7/5 
 
 

7/6 
BG Spray & Play 

10-12 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp t-shirt 
 
 

7/9 
 
 

 
 

7/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/11 
 

Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick up at 

Beach 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

7/12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

7/13 
 
 

WEEK 2: WEEK 2: WEEK 2:    

WEEK 1: WEEK 1: WEEK 1:    

WEEK 3: WEEK 3: WEEK 3:    

1st Session: KOALA CAMP 20181st Session: KOALA CAMP 2018  

WEEK 4: WEEK 4: WEEK 4:    

 
 

 

W



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/16 

 
 

 
7/17 

 

 
7/18 

 

 
7/19 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/20 

 
Pirates Cove  

10-12 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp Shirt 

 
7/23 

 
 

 
7/24 

 
Tots & Tunes  

10-10-45 
 
 

 
7/25 

 

 
7/26 

 
Buffalo Grove 
Spray & Play 

 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
7/27 

 
 
 
 
 

 
07/30 

 
 
 
 

 
07/31 
Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick 
up at Beach 

 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
8/1 

 

 
8/2 

8/ 
8/3 
 

The Frog  
Lady  

10:30-11 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8/6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8/7 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8/8 

 
Friends Park 

Trip:  
Drop off/ Takiff 

Pick up at Friends 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
8/9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
8/10 

 
Last Day 

 
 
 

2nd Session: KOALA CAMP 20182nd Session: KOALA CAMP 2018  

WEEK 5: WEEK 5: WEEK 5:    

WEEK 6: WEEK 6: WEEK 6:    

WEEK 7: WEEK 7: WEEK 7:    

WEEK 8: WEEK 8: WEEK 8:    

Wearaaaaraaaaaaaaraaaar ccccaaaaamaaaaaaaaaaaaa p

 
 

10:30 11

ar ccccammmmammmmammmmmammmmmp



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/18 
First Day of 

Camp! 
 
 

 
 
6/19 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 
 

 

 
6/20  

 
6/21 

Friends Park 
Trip:  

 
 
 

Wear green camp 
shirt 

 
6/22 

 
 
 
 
 

6/25 
Beach Trip 

Drop off/ Pick up 
at Beach 

 
 
 

Wear green camp  
shirt 

6/26 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 

6/27 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

6/28 
 

6/29 
Super Stolie 

Music  
performance 

10am  
 
 
 

07/02 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff  

Wear green camp  
shirt 

 
 
 

 
07/03                 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 
 

 

07/04 
No Camp  

 
Happy July 4th! 

 

07/05 
 
 
 
 

7/6 
 
 
 

7/9 
Beach Trip 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Beach 

 
 
 
 

Wear   green camp  
shirt 

 
 
 

7/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/11 
Medieval Times 

 
 
 

Wear green camp 
shirt  

7/12 
 
 
 
 

 

7/13 
 
 
 

WEEK 2: ALOHA SUMMER 

WEEK 1: FRIENDSHIP/WE ARE FAMILY 

WEEK 3: PARTY IN THE USA 

1st Session: KINDER KORNER 2018 

WEEK 4: PIRATES AND PRINCESSES 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/16 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff     Wear 
green camp shirt 

 
7/17 

Music with Mr. 
Shaun 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/18 

 
7/19 
Field Trip to  

Khols children’s 
Museum 

 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff    Wear 
green camp shirt 

 

 
7/20 

 
 

 
7/23 
Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick up 

at Beach 
 
 
 
 

Wear  green camp 
shirt 

 

 
7/24 

 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 

 
 

 
7/25 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/26 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/27 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/30 

 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff    Wear 
green camp shirt 

 
07/31 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 

 
08/1 

Field Trip to  
Lincoln Park Zoo 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up at 
Takiff                         

Wear green camp 
shirt 

 
8/2 

 
8/3 

 
The Frog  

Lady  
10:30-11 

 
8/6 

 
Beach Trip 

 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Beach 

Wear green camp  
shirt 

 
 

 
8/7 
 
Music with Mr. 
Shaun 
 
 

 
 

 
8/8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8/9 
Friends Park 

Trip:  
 
 

Drop off/ Takiff 
Pick up at 

Friends    Wear 
green camp shirt 

 
 

 
8/10 

 
Last Day 

 
 
 

2nd Session: KINDER KORNER 2018 

WEEK 5: SCIENCE LAB 

WEEK 6: WILD WEST 

WEEK 7: NATURE 

WEEK 8: SUPERHEROS 
10



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/18 
First Day of 

Camp! 
 
 

 
 
6/19 
Brunswick 

(Wear socks!) 
 

 

 
 
6/20 

 
Campers’ Choice 

 
 
 

 
 
6/21 

Olympics 
(Wear your country’s 

colors) 
 

        

 
 
6/22 

Hidden 
Creek 

 
 
 

 
 

 

6/25 
Beach Trip 

(All Day) 
 
 

Pizza lunch included 

6/26 
NEW! 

Mobile Room  
Escape 

 

6/27 
 

Campers’ Choice 
 
 
 
 
 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

6/28 
Gold Rush 
(Wear your best 
Western gear) 

Hot Dog Cookout! 

6/29 
Wheeling 

Water Park 

7/2 
Hidden 
Creek 

 
 
 
 
 

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

7/3 

Funtopia 
Wear Socks! 

 
 
 

AM Field Trip– PM Campers 
welcome to join! 

 
 

7/4 
No Camp  
Today! 

Join us at the parade 
or at the fireworks. 

 
 
 
 

Happy 4th of  
July!!! 

7/5 
Carnival Day 

(Dress in your  
favorite costume!) 

 
 

 

7/6 
Beach Trip 

(All Day) 
 

 
 
 
 

Pizza lunch included 

 
 

7/9 
 

Vernon Hills 
Water Park 

 
 

 
 

7/10 
 

Pump It Up 
(Wear socks) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/11 
 
 

Campers’ Choice  
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
COLOR WARS 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
Hot Dog Cookout! 

 
 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
 
 

7/13 
Barefoot 

Bay Water 
Park 

 

WEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: Teamwork   

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: Sportsmanship   

WEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: Appreciation   

1st Session: Sun Fun 20181st Session: Sun Fun 2018  

WEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: Respect   

 3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

 3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

PP

= Lunch available to purchase through North Shore Catering                                       =Pack Lunch 

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM)  

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

 
Sun Fun Over-

nighter 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/16 

First Day of  
second session! 

 
 
 

 
7/17 

Libertyville 
Sports 

Complex 
 

 
7/18 

Campers’ Choice 
 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy  

 
7/29 
Superhero Day 

(Dress like your    
favorite superhero)  

 
 
 

 
7/20 

 Beach Trip 
(All Day) 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch 
Included 

 
7/23 

Wheeling 
Water Park 

 
 
 

 
7/24 

NEW! 
Chicago Dogs 

Baseball 
Game! 

 
7/25 

NEW! 
Roosevelt 

Aquatic Center 
 
 

 
7/26 

NEW! 
Chicago Sports 

Day! 
 

Show your pride in Chicago by 
wearing your favorite Chicago 

sports team’s gear 
 
 
 

Hot Dog Cook Out  

 
7/27 

Hidden 
Creek 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/30 

Beach Trip 
(All Day) 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch 
Included 

 
 

 
7/31 
Lincoln Park 

Zoo 
 
 

 
8/1 

Campers’ Choice  
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 

 
8/2 

Hollywood 
Day 

Dress as your favorite TV, 
movie or book character! 

 
8/3 

Beach Trip 
(All Day) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch 
Included 

 
8/7 

1st Grade:  
Hidden Creek  

Water Park 
 
 
 

2nd & 3rd Grade: 
Vernon Hills  
Water Park 

 
 

 
8/8 
 

1st. Gr. Only: 
Pirates Cove 

 
 

2nd Gr. Only: 
Pump it Up! 

 
 

3rd Grade:  
On Site 

 
 

 
8/9 

Campers’ Choice  
Sports 

 
With Coach Tommy  

Gr. 1&2 
 

3rd grade only 
Field trip with 

CA to Action Territory 
 
 
 

 
8/10 
COLOR WARS II 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
 

Parent Night 6:00pm  
 
 

 
8/11 
Beach Trip 

(All Day) 
 

DJ Party 
PIZZA LUNCH @ 

BEACH 
 
 

Sign up for  
Summer’s End! 

2nd Session: SUN FUN 20182nd Session: SUN FUN 2018  

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons PM 

WEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: Friendship   

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/Perseverance   

1st  Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: Sensitivity   

3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 3rd Grade 

Swim Lessons (PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and Fitness   

1st Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

3rd Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

= Lunch available to purchase through North Shore Catering                                       =Pack Lunch 

WWW

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/18 

First Day of 
Camp! 

 
 

 
 
6/19 
Brunswick 

Bowl 
(Wear socks!) 

 
 

 
 
6/20 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 

 
 
6/21 

Olympics 
(Wear your group’s 
assigned country’s 

colors!)        
 

 
 
6/22 

Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 

6/25 
Wheeling 

Water Park 
 
 

6/26 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

6/27 
NEW! 

Mobile Room  
Escape 

 
 

6/28 
Gold Rush 
(Wear your best 
Western gear) 

Hot Dog Cookout! 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/29 
Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 

7/2 
Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 
 

7/3 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 

7/4 
No Camp  
Today! 

Join us at the parade 
or at the fireworks. 

 
 
 
 

Happy 4th of  
July!!! 

 

7/5 
Carnival Day 

(Dress in your  
favorite costume!) 

 
 

7/6 
Hidden 
Creek 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7/9 
Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 

7/10 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/11 
NEW! 

Roosevelt 
Aquatic Center 

7/12 
 

COLOR WARS 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
Hot Dog Cookout! 

 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
 

7/13 
Barefoot 

Bay Water 
Park 

 
 
 
 
 

WEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: Teamwork   

WEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: Sportsmanship   

WEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: Appreciation   

1st Session: Camp Adventure 20181st Session: Camp Adventure 2018  

WEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: Respect   

= Lunch available to purchase through North Shore Catering                                           =Pack Lunch 

Escappe

 
Camp Adventure  

Overnighter 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/16 

First Day of  
Second 

Session! 
 
 
 

 
7/17 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 
 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
7/18 

Funtopia 
(Wear socks) 

 

 
7/19 
Superhero 

Day  
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/20 
Vernon Hills 
Water Park 

 
 
 
 

 
7/23 

Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 
7/24 

 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
7/25 

Chicago 
Cubs Game 

Bring $$ for Dinner!! 

 
7/26 

NEW! 
Chicago Sports 

Day! 
 

Show your pride in Chicago by 
wearing your favorite Chicago 

sports team’s gear 
 
 
 
 

Hot Dog Cook Out  

 
7/27 

Wheeling 
Water Park 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/30 

 

Bartlett 
Water Park 

 
 
 
 

 
7/31 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 
 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 

 
8/1 

Lincoln Park 
Zoo 

 

 
8/2 

Hollywood 
Day 

Dress as your favorite TV, 
movie or book character! 

 
 

 
8/3 

Rainbow 
Falls 

 
8/6 
 

Wheeling 
Water Park 

 
 

 
8/7 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
8/8 

Action 
Territory 

 
8/9 
COLOR WARS! 
Wear your team 

color!) 
 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
Parent Night 

6:00pm   

 
8/10 
Beach Trip 

 
DJ Party 

PIZZA LUNCH @ 
BEACH 

 
Sign up for  

Summer’s End! 

2nd Session: Camp Adventure 20182nd Session: Camp Adventure 2018  

WEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: Friendship   

WEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/Perseverance   

WEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: Sensitivity   

WEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and Fitness   

WWWW

= Lunch available to purchase through North Shore Catering                                                   =Pack Lunch 



2018 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 25

Appendix D – Marketing Materials





IX. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

September 2018 

FY2019/20 Budget 
The FY2019/20 budget process has officially begun! Computerized general budget worksheets 
and program budget worksheets have been distributed to staff. On September 6, a mandatory 
budget kickoff meeting/ in-service training workshop was conducted for all District staff that 
submit departmental and/or program budgets. The timeline of the District’s financial legal 
calendar (which includes the FY2019/20 budget timeline) is included in your Board packet. 
Please make a special note in your calendars of the specific meeting times related to District’s 
legal calendar.

Front Office 
Front office staff has been busy preparing for the new school year and for the fall program 
season. Billing for the 2018/19 school year for the ELC preschool and afterschool program has 
started, and all went smoothly in the first billing month.

2018 Levy Information 
Preliminary information and analysis regarding the new 2018 proposed levy request is being 
prepared by staff and will be presented to the Board at a Finance Committee of the Whole 
meeting that is scheduled for October 2.  

Distinguished Agency Accreditation 
Staff has finalized the gathering and organizing of required documentation, and updated policies 
as required for the Legal, Financial, and Human Resources/Safety sections of the Accreditation 
Standards Manual. The informal review was conducted on September 7, with the final review to 
be held on September 18. 

PDRMA Loss Control Review-Administration 
All required documentation has been gathered and organized, and applicable policies updated for 
the Administration Loss Control Review. Many thanks to all Business Department staff who 
assisted in the preparation. The review was originally scheduled for August 21, but had to be 
rescheduled to October 9. 

Timeclock Management System 
Due to my leave of absence these last several months with my Mom, this project was delayed. 
Staff has now re-convened with TCP support staff and we are working on a timeline and game 
plan for full implementation. Given new supervisory staff, there will be some additional training 
incorporated as well.  

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/Human Resources 



10/8/2018

10/2/2018

Department Heads submit capital project proposals/ideas (new and
carryover items) to Executive Director. All items should be priced.

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
FINANCIAL LEGAL CALENDAR

SEPTEMBER 2018 2019

SEPTEMBER 2018

Distribute budget worksheets and program budget worksheets with
cover memo and tentative budget timeline to staff. Staff in service
meeting on the budget process and timeline.

OCTOBER 2018

Early September

By 9/6/2018

Staff works on options for 2018 Tax Levy.

10/26/2018 Deadline to complete First Draft #1 program worksheets AND general
budget worksheets to submit to the Director of Finance.

10/16/2018 October Board Meeting: Board formally determines amount of money
estimated necessary to be raised by taxation in tax year 2018 for
2019/20 fiscal year.

Week of October 15 20 Executive Director and Department Heads meet, discuss, and prioritize
Capital Project proposals.

11/5/2018 Capital Project List finalized by Executive Director and submitted to
Director of Finance.

11/20/2018 November Board Meeting: Levy Hearing held. Board adopts 2018 Tax
Levy Ordinance.

10/31/2018 Deliver notice of Levy Hearing for paper to publish on Thursday, 11/8/18
(must be no more than 14 days, no less than 7 days prior to hearing,
which will be 11/20/18).

Computerized First Draft #1 of general budget worksheets and program
budget worksheets returned to staff from Director of Finance for their
revision/review.

11/19/2018

Potential Finance Committee of the Whole meeting to discuss capital
projects with Board.

Finance Committee of the Whole meeting before Committee meeting to
discuss preliminary levy.

NOVEMBER 2018



12/20/2018 Deadline to complete First Draft #2 budget worksheets and program
budget worksheets and submit to Director of Finance for revisions.

12/25/2018 File 2018 Tax Levy Ordinance, Certificate of Presiding Officer, Certificate
of Secretary with Cook County Tax Extension Office (Deadline to file: last
Tuesday of December).

1/15/2019 January Board Meeting: Board approves FY2019/20 Regular Board
meeting dates.

1/11/2019 Deadline for any staff changes/corrections to be made to Final First
Budget Draft.

Deadline to mail W 2s, 1099s, 1095s. (IRS Filing by 2/28/19)

By 1/31/2019 Final First Budget Draft distributed to the Board for review.

By 1/31/2019 Deadline to file tax exempt status filing with Cook County.

Additional meetings in early March, if necessary.

2/19/2019 February Board Meeting: Pass BAO Transfer Resolution, if necessary.

By 2/1/2019 Deadline to submit Economic Interest Statement file to County Clerk's
Office.

Week of Feb 4 8 & 11 15 Finance Committee of the Whole to discuss budget.

Change IMRF posting new salary/insurance information.
Change IPRA salary survey information.

By 3/1/2019

By 2/28/2019 Annual Worker Compensation Audit due to PDRMA.
Salary increase/annual evaluations.

Deadline to file ACA Forms with IRS.

By 3/11/2019 Tentative preliminary date of audit fieldwork.

By 3/15/2019 Completed and final proposed BAO copy is made available at
administrative offices for public inspection. Document shall be available
for not less than 30 days prior to the adoption of BAO on 4/16/19.

DECEMBER 2018

JANUARY 2019

FEBRUARY 2019

MARCH 2019



By 3/25/2019 Deliver notice to paper announcing public hearing on BAO to be
published in local paper on 4/4/19.

3/19/2019 March Board Meeting: Approve FY2019/20 Approval Draft as "working
administrative budget." (BAO is adopted at April or May meeting once
accurate prior year amounts are known.)

4/17/2019 April Board Meeting: As part of the agenda, a public hearing is held on
the 2019/20 Estimated Revenue, Budget & Appropriations Ordinance
(BAO). It must be adopted within 3 months after the beginning of the
fiscal year, or June 1.

4/30/2019 File BAO with Cook County Clerk's Office.

Mid April PDRMA Annual Operating Expenditures/Audit Filing.

JUNE 2019

5/21/2019 May Board Meeting.

Last week April/Early May Annual audit final fieldwork begins.
MAY 2019

6/19/2019 Mail certified copy of Prevailing Wage Ordinance to Secretary of State
and Illinois Department of Labor.

6/18/2019 June Board Meeting: Pass Prevailing Wage Ordinance.
Final audit and management letter presented to Board.

Early July Special Projects Committee review of 3 year capital/master plan
projects.

JULY 2019

Mail copy of Prevailing Wage Ordinance to local paper for publishing
(must be published within 30 days of passage).

By 6/30/2019 Annual Operating Expenditures Report due to PDRMA.

July/August Publish "Notice of Audit Availability" in local newspaper.

7/16/2019 July Board Meeting: Board approval of Resolution to commit additional
fund balance reserves to Master Plan Capital Fund 69.

APRIL 2019



AUGUST 2019

Receive 2018 final EAV and Tax Extension from County. Update Tax
Impact files on GPD website.

By 8/27/2019 Final Annual Audit Comptroller's Annual Financial Report with County
Clerk's Office.

June August 2019 File Annual Audit and Comptroller's Annual Financial Report with
Comptroller's Office. (These steps above must be completed within 180
days after the preceding fiscal year ends.)

File Unclaimed Property Report with IL Treasurer's Office.

P:\BUSMGR\Legal Timelines\Legal.FY19 20.xls



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

September 2018 

Recreation Department Report 
September is a time of transition for the Recreation Department. Staff is busy closing out the 
summer season while at the same time rolling out the expansion of Children’s Circle, hosting 
special events and preparing for fall session of classes and programs to begin. This summer was 
overwhelmingly positive in a number of different areas.  

Summer camp ended on a very positive note. Staff closed the camp season with Camp Night on 
Thursday, followed by a Beach Party on Friday, where parents and campers got to say their final 
goodbyes to the camp staff they have bonded with over the eight weeks of the camp season. 
Enrollment for camps was overall in line with last year, and staff continues to offer the same 
high quality program that the community is accustomed.  

School has definitely started in the Early Learning Center at Takiff Center. We welcomed many 
new families to all our programs including the two new Children’s Circle classes. Many thanks 
to our amazing team of teachers, maintenance, and admin staff who worked tirelessly during the 
month of August and beginning of September to get all of our classrooms ready.  

To celebrate back to school we have a great promotion going in the month of September to 
welcome all of our preschool families. Glencoe Fitness is free for the month of September to all 
parents whose children are registered in our preschool, Children’s Circle, or GJK. 

The Rec Team has already started working on their FY19/20 budgets and have attended three 
budget trainings in August and September to ensure that the whole team is prepared for the 
budget process. 

Beach: Matt Walker 
As of September 3, the Beach House officially closed for the season. The restrooms will remain 
open on warm days until the end of September. The Boathouse will remain open Friday through 
Sunday until October 14 from 12:00-5:00pm. 

Our lifeguard staff did a tremendous job keeping our guests safe this season. We did not record a 
single rescue this summer and this can be directly attributed to rule enforcement, mindfulness of 
weather conditions, continuous monitoring of changing weather conditions, and daily monitoring 
of the shoreline for rip currents, lateral currents, and rough surf.

The boating beach staff did a fantastic job and overall, our boating community is very pleased 
with the boat house staff. We are lucky to have some young sailors on the team who will 
continue to grow and develop their skills on the beach for years to come.  

The beach service team and cashiers were attentive and eager to make sure all patrons coming to 
the beach either had season tokens or paid the daily admission. Based on feedback from the 
Lakefront Advisory Committee, on busy days a roving cashier was added at the Park Ave 
entrance to make sure all guests are being charged the appropriate daily fee.  



This season we had higher attendance totals due to favorable weather conditions on opening 
weekend and most weekends throughout the summer. Boat storage revenue was steady and staff 
expects winter storage to be in line with this trend. Winter storage applications will be sent out 
mid-September. Surveys have already been send out to beach pass holders, with surveys going 
out to boating beach patrons in early October. 

Revenue
as of 9/4 2018 2017 Variance 

Summer Boat Storage $77,491 $83,121 $(5,630)
Trellis Rentals $9,091 $13,564 $(4,473)
Beach Passes $55,223 $54,530 $693
Sailing Camp $31,375 $17,498 $13,877

Aquatics Camp $32,948 $20,008 $12,940
Admission Res $40,288 $25,763 $14,525

Admission Non-Res $184,340 $168,910 $15,430
Total Revenue $430,756 $383,394 $47,362

Early Childhood: Jessica Stockl 
The Children’s Circle Beluga class was busy traveling this summer. The class enjoyed a trip to 
a farm, Buffalo Grove Spray and Play, and Pirates Cove. Our Starfish classroom also did great 
on walking trips to Tots-n-Tunes and Friends Park. The Starfish class was able to go on the bus 
for a field trip to Buffalo Grove Spray n’ Play. They found the bus ride very exciting! Belugas 
also enjoyed walking field trips to some of the gorgeous parks in our community and to Public 
Safety. Our younger classes enjoyed visits from a few community helpers as well as a reptile 
expert. All classrooms had a blast enjoying the warm weather, splashing in the water tables, and 
most importantly - PLAYING! We restarted the preschool garden on the Takiff playground by 
planting pumpkin and sunflower seeds.

The new school year is off to a busy start with our school enrollment in line with expectations. 
The expansion of Children’s Circle has been a smooth process. Children’s Circle had thirteen 
new families start on September 4 and another four families beginning September 10. Beginning 
in September, our Jellyfish class is at 10 children, Frogs is at 8 children, Turtles is at 15 children, 
Starfish is at 12 children, Dolphins is at 15 children and Belugas are at 17 children. We are 
keeping the Frog class small as more than half of the Jellyfish (infants) will need to move up 
mid-year. The mid-year openings in Jellyfish are already full.  

Children’s Circle Enrollment 
as of 9/6

2018 2017 

Jellyfish 10 15 
Frogs 8 14 

Turtles (NEW) 15 0 
Starfish 12 17 

Dolphins (NEW) 15 0 
Belugas 17 21 
Total 77 67 



Children’s Circle recently switched to using reusable plates, cups, forks, and spoons for snacks 
and lunch to align with the Park District’s sustainability goal. 

Early Learning Center opened on Tuesday, September 4. The children had a great first day 
exploring their new classrooms, decorating their locker name frames, and playing outside. To get 
the year started, teachers hosted an orientation day so the families could see their new 
classrooms, meet their teachers, and talk about their child’s needs. Our teachers have been 
working hard to continue to research new teaching methods and activities to implement in our 
classrooms. This year, we replaced ELC 4s PM with a Kindergarten Readiness program. This 
afternoon class focuses on gearing up for South School. We have students from ELC, Children’s 
Circle, and Am Shalom in the class.  

Fall ELC enrollment is currently at 66 participants. This past month, we increased enrollment by 
15 participants. We are hopeful that the classes will grow as new families move into the District. 

Arts and Youth - Stephani Briskman: 
New this fall, we are offering additional STEM classes, Robotics and Game of Drones. Both 
classes filled on the first day of registration. We are also offering sewing and a range of art 
classes. 

Kids Club is again located at Watts Recreation Center and started August 29. The program 
utilizes our bus, Hilary, to transport children to and from school and their after school 
activities. Currently, we have 15 children enrolled in AM Kids Club ranging from a two-day 
option to five-day option, two children signed up for the Watts Shuttle Service, and 45 children 
enrolled in PM kids club ranging from a two-day option to five-day option and eight children 
signed up for the Watts Shuttle Service.  

Enrollment for “School Day Off” programs is slightly below last year, but we expect it to 
increase in line with 2017. The program follows District 35’s institute days and holidays. The 
program starts and ends at the Takiff Center and includes a field trip during the day. For 
example, our first day off program was September 10 and the children went bowling at Pinstripes 
and then back to Takiff Center to play games and create arts and crafts projects. Below is 
enrollment for School Day Off: 

ELC Enrollment 
as of 9/4

2018-2019 2017-2018

2’s classes 15 19 
3’s classes 17 19 
4’s classes 26 42 

Kindergarten Readiness
(Replaced ELC 4s PM) 

8 7 

Total 66 87 



2018 Enrollment 2017 Enrollment
September 10 38 September 21 22 
September 19 37 October 3 31 
October 8 11 October 9 19 
November 8 22 November 9 26 
November 9 18 November 10 25 
November 21 12 November 22 28 
Total 138 Total 151 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
The Park District had a busy summer full of special events. Meet the Fleet was a partnered event 
with the Park District and Village to showcase vehicles. The Beach Campout had the highest 
enrollment ever with 207 participants up from 186, in 2017. Weather was perfect for the event! 
Campers enjoyed a big bonfire, dinner provided by Northshore Catering, S’mores, and watched 
Coco on the big screen. In the morning, families enjoyed breakfast before heading home.  

With summer events in the rearview mirror, the whole recreation team is focused on the Great 
Mud Run. With over 254 pre-registered, the event is shaping up to be another fun and muddy 
race.  

Summer Special Event Attendance 2018 2017 
July 12- Park-N-Play: Chalk Fest 30 Not offered 
July 15 – Disc Golf Tournament 20 40 
July 19 – Park-N-Play: Water Wonders 45 41 
July 21 – Meet the Machines ~ 375 ~ 400 
July 24 – Tots-N-Tunes ~ 250 ~ 200 

July 27 – Beach Camp Out 59 families  
(total 207) 

53 families 
(total 186) 

August 2 – Park-N-Play: Fossil Exploration 35 22 
August 9 – Park-N-Play: Yard Games 25 Not offered 
August 28 – Tots-N-Tunes 175 Not offered 

Upcoming fall events:  
September 15 – The Great Mud Run 
September 16 – Doggie Dip 
October 6 – Harvest Fest 
October 6 – Tails & Ales 
October 19 – Art Show 
October 25 – Boo Bash 

Enrollment as of 9/6 Fall 2018 Fall 2017 
Adult Ceramics 21 40 
Youth Ceramics 43 50 
Adult Art Programs 43 15 



We have noticed that adult ceramics is currently lower than this time 2017. Adult classes have 
not started yet, so we do anticipate additional sign ups as we get closer to the start classes. Adult 
art is gaining in popularity and we are excited about the Art Show on October 19.  

Athletics/Teen Camp - Chris Pietrini:  
Fall athletic programs have started and additional instructors were added for Tumbling and Flag 
Football to accommodate high demand and waitlisted participants. Hot Shots classes have had 
exceptional enrollment. 

Chris and our coaches are gearing up for fall basketball and are actively promoting our 
basketball clinics and teams. The preseason travel clinic were extended and a preseason clinic for 
house league begins this month. 

Chris is working with the Park District of Highland Park, Deerfield Park District, and Lake 
Forest Park District to schedule games for the 2018-2019 house league season for 5th and 6th

grade boys and girls. This will give house basketball players a taste of travel basketball.  

Chris is also working with the Mt. Prospect, River Trails, Prospect Heights, Wheeling, Elk 
Grove, and Northbrook Park Districts to give 7th and 8th grade boys that don’t make their school 
teams a chance to play basketball. The league will be set up similarly to the 5th and 6th grade 
league and we will have half of our games at home and half away. 

Enrollment  2018  2017  2016 
Preseason Travel 63 49 36 
Preseason House 25 39 30 
Total 88 88 66

Takiff, Fitness, Dance & Watts: Adam Wohl  
Facility rentals in 2018 continue to trend above 2017. Switching to facility rentals versus 
birthday party packages has helped streamline the process. We have booked quite a few large 
rentals that are helping to improve our rental numbers. 

Takiff Center Rental 
as of 9/1 2018 2017 

Facility Rentals $52,142 $39,179 

Glencoe Fitness 
The Glencoe Fitness Center continues to grow in membership. We are offered a Summer Student 
Membership for the 3-month summer break at $99 for residents. Thirty-one summer student 
memberships were sold in 2018, surpassing our goal of 25 total. 

During the month of September, we are running a back to school special for all Children’s 
Circle, ELC, and GJK parents. They are able to try Glencoe Fitness for the entire month of 
September for free. Below is our current active member totals.  

Active Fitness Members as of 9/5/18 Fees 
208 $54,592 



Dance/Theatre/Fitness 2018 2017 
# Students Fees # Students Fees 

Dance Classes 143 $50,395 142 $52,346 
Sarah Hall Theatre Classes 55 $18,599 77 $28,432 

Youth Yoga 13 $4,476 10 $3,554 
Broadway Bound 72 $52,272 80 $55,407 

Open Gym 
To increase summer gym usage, we offered open gym six days per week, up from once a week in 
2017. This has resulted in an increased attendance June through August. 

Submitted by: 
Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation & Facilities

Open Gym
as of 9/1 2018 2017 

Revenue $1,666 $814 
Number of Visits 334 163 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

September 2018 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with AltaManu relating to the playground replacement projects, Takiff 
Parking project, Bluff Study, and Old Green Bay Trail master plan. I am continuing to work with 
ACG relating to the HVAC replacement at Watts.  

Grounds/Horticulture
The landscape crews have been out in full force replanting flower beds at Friends and Berlin 
Park. Staff has begun fall pruning, bed preparations and has been working on natural area 
maintenance. Staff has been busy adding new chips to tree rings throughout the park system. The 
pathways at the Bob Everly Wildflower Sanctuary received pruning to widen the pathways for 
the Mud Run. 

Staff has continued to work on supporting the SOSA restoration initiative. Staff used heavy 
equipment to remove brush, grade the area, and assist in final preparations necessary for 
planting.

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
The Parks team has been busy completing the by-owner items necessary for the playground and 
parking lot projects. Staff completed the following tasks in the last month related to these capital 
projects:

Installed safety mulch at Vernon & Old Elm 
Installed split rail fence at Vernon 
Installed park ID signage at Vernon and Old Elm 
Installed new plumbing for the drinking fountains at Old Elm and Vernon 
Completed grass restoration at Vernon and Old Elm 
Removed light bollards and trees prior to demolition of the parking lot at Takiff Center 
Demolished the Woodlawn Playground equipment and curbs and removed the old mulch 

o The concrete and mulch from Woodlawn were recycled. 

Staff has been busy making preparations for the Mud Run race. The event spans across multiple 
parks and natural areas. Staff completed the installation and manufacture of many of the 
obstacles used in the race.

Staff is beginning the process of fall athletic turf maintenance including aerating, seeding and 
weed treatments. Soccer and fall baseball seasons have begun. 

Staff continues to groom baseball and soccer fields.



Facilities 
During this year’s Takiff shut-down the facility was overhauled. The following was completed: 

Refinished gym and aerobics studio floors 
Replaced the rubber floor in Children’s Circle classroom 
Painted four class rooms in the multipurpose wing 
Painted seven classrooms in the Children’s Circle/ELC wing 
Blinds were repaired or replaced throughout the Children’s Circle/ELC wing 
Installed new smart TV in community room 3 
Touched up the paint in the fitness center 
Community wing hallway was painted 
Steam cleaned all title floors and grout in facility restrooms 2400 sq. ft. total 
Cleaned all carpets in the facility 
Completed the 2018/19 Takiff paint/abatement/carpentry project 
A roof drain was repaired in a Children’s Circle classroom 
New classroom signage was installed 
New shelving was installed in the ceramics studio 
Fire alarm system was fully tested 

Facilities and Parks staff worked together to support the new Children’s Circle program 
expansion. Ten classroom setups were moved to different locations in the facility to 
accommodate the new program. The work completed during this year’s shut down was by far the 
most complicated and logistically challenging. I want to thank the Recreation team for all their 
support in executing a successful shut-down.  

Equipment
One of the general use Kubota tractors was sent to the manufacturer for bi-annual maintenance.  

Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by performing 
maintenance on vehicles. 
I am currently managing tree maintenance on District 35 property with our contractor. 
The school district is reimbursing the Park District for all costs. 
We have continued to cut all Village of Glencoe grass per the shared services agreement. 

A special thank you to Erin for making what seemed like 50 signs to keep residents informed and 
entering the facility during the parking lot/entrance closure. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District 
Marketing/Communications Report 

September 2018

Social Media/Email 
We ended the month of August with 41,686 
Facebook impressions (in 2017, we ended 
the month with 39,453 impressions). We 
now have 1522 followers on Facebook, 842 
followers on Twitter and 1,007 followers on 
Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1,924 
followers on Facebook.

We sent out several targeted email blasts, 
primarily focused on filling fall classes with 
low enrollment and special events. 
Throughout the summer, we sent a weekly “Put Some Play In Your Week” email blast, which 
averaged a 30% open rate and 10% click rate.

Date Subject Total
Sent

Open
Rate

Click
Rate Link

8/31/2018 Preschool Parent Deals 197 66.20% 7.80% https://conta.cc/2PoCafA
8/30/2018 Mud Run 2018 5094 32.70% 6.80% https://conta.cc/2Ph1fc6
8/24/2018 Put Some Play In Your Week 13 5103 31.30% 11.40% https://conta.cc/2MOtLBc
8/19/2018 Fitness Center Closure & No Classes 321 40.10% 2.40% https://conta.cc/2MVxWLx
8/17/2018 Put Some Play In Your Week 12 5111 31.60% 10.00% https://conta.cc/2BaDqR4
8/13/2018 Fitness Center & Parking Lot 319 55.60% 2.30% https://conta.cc/2P5gfdY
8/10/2018 Put Some Play In Your Week 11 5104 31.30% 9.30% https://conta.cc/2MBmqVh
8/6/2018 Parking Lot Construction 5114 28.30% 3.50% https://conta.cc/2M67y18
8/3/2018 Put Some Play In Your Week 10 5116 30.70% 11.80% https://conta.cc/2AzJfax

Inside Glencoe 
This fall, the Park District is participating with the Village, School District, and other agencies to 
create a community-wide cover to promote the See Something, Say Something campaign. The 
newsletter will be in mailboxes by early October.  

Special Events 
I worked with the Recreation Team to promote Vernon Playground Pop-Up Party, Park-n-Play, 
Tots-n-Tunes, Summer’s End Camps, STEAM camps, and the Mud Run. We created an event 
signage, email blast, flyers, posters, event signage, and social media posts to promote the event.  

Construction Communication 
We worked closely with the Parks and Facilities departments to communicate the parking lot 
construction changes to patrons. Communication tactics included media pitches, email blasts, 
banners, posters, social media posts, and building signage. Special care was taken to 
communicate with renters, fitness members, and regular users. The plan was nimble, and signage 
was adapted/moved as construction goals were met. 

Submitted by:  
Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing and Communications 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

Facebook Twitter Instagram

Social Media Followers
Likes at the end of August 2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018



SAFETY AND WELLNESS COMMITTEE MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, August 15, 2018 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:10 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Jessica Stockl, Liz Stowick, Adam Wohl, Liz Visteen, and 
Lorise Weil.  Absent: Lisa Sheppard, Bobby Collins and Matt Walker.     

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting Minutes from June 29, 2018 were 
reviewed and accepted.     

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported on the accident/incident reports for the past two months.  There 
were (5) participant accident/incident reports and (3) minor employee injuries.   

4. Open Claims:   The underground storage tank Property Loss claim is still open.  In addition, there are (3) 
Worker’s Comp claims and (3) Property claims that are open.     

5. Carry Over Items:  

a) Lorise stated that GJK asked if we could possibly incorporate “Fire Stop Signs” during one of our 
future fire drills.  Chris stated that they will definitely take a look at this in the fall, i.e., when Public 
Safety comes out to assist us on determining multiple evacuation points.   

b) Lorise asked about the Safety Data Sheet binders, and provided Chris with A-Z indexes for the 
multiple areas that will be storing Safety Data Sheets, e.g., Parks, Beach, Watts, and the Early 
Childhood wing.  Chris will be installing Safety Data Sheet stations sometime this year. 

   
6. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.  Carol went over the COIs that 
are still needed.

7. New Items:   

a) Jenny provided some sample formats on Certificates of Insurance at our meeting, and went over what 
was needed.  In addition, it was stated that we are responsible for updating the spreadsheet too.  It is 
noteworthy to mention that Jenny updated the requirements for the Independent Contractors as well.      

b) Jenny also provided us with information on Record Retention.  Jenny further stated that the Retention 
Document that she has been working on will be completed by October 1, 2018.   

c) It was noted that the Leadership Team needs to re-examine our current footwear policy.    
d) Chris stated that we should use a red pallet to store documents for our upcoming document 

shredding date; the exact date for this will be scheduled sometime in early November of 2018.   

8. Wellness Initiatives: 

a) Liz Stowick mentioned that our “Walking Initiative” has started.  Although we have met our (100%)  
     (Goal) challenge, we still have until 8-27-18 to get closer to 1st place.  Currently, we are in 11th place, 
     however, this number is out of 91 (ninety-one) Park Districts.   
b) There will be further discussion at our next meeting as to how we can constructively use the monies  
     toward wellness that we received in the Hazard Hunter Contest.   
c) Adam provided a detailed report on the daily usage of the Glencoe Fitness Center.   
d) Liz briefly discussed the Glencoe Fitness Center and the use of the Center for employees.   

        Adjourn:  12:10 p.m.   

The next Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 19, 2018  
at 11:00 a.m.



SAFETY AND WELLNESS COMMITTEE MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, September 5, 2018 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:05 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Bobby Collins, Jessica Stockl, Liz Stowick, Adam Wohl, 
Liz Visteen, and Lorise Weil.  Absent: Lisa Sheppard and Matt Walker.     

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting Minutes from August 15, 2018 were 
reviewed and accepted.     

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported on the accident/incident reports for the past month.  There were 
(0) participant accident/incident reports and (0) minor employee injuries.   

4. Facility and Park Inspection Review:   

a) One of the benches on the tote stool table, located at the Takiff playground, requires repair.  Chris  
     noted that materials have been ordered.   
b) Chris stated, per the August inspection, housekeeping is needed in the maintenance area.   

5. Open Claims:   The underground storage tank Property Loss claim is still open.  In addition, there are (3) 
Worker’s Comp claims and (3) Property claims that are open.     

6. Carry Over Items:  

a) Lorise stated that GJK asked if we could possibly incorporate “Fire Stop Signs” during one of our 
future fire drills.  Chris stated that they will definitely take a look at this in the fall, i.e., when Public 
Safety comes out to assist us on determining multiple evacuation points.   

b) Lorise asked about the Safety Data Sheet binders, and provided Chris with A-Z indexes for the 
multiple areas that will be storing Safety Data Sheets, e.g., Parks, Beach, Watts, and the Early 
Childhood wing.  Chris will be installing Safety Data Sheet stations sometime this year. 

c) It was noted that the Leadership Team needs to re-examine our current footwear policy.  Bobby will 
be following-up with Matt on this.   

d) There will be further discussion at our next meeting as to how we will constructively use the monies  
toward wellness that we received in the Hazard Hunter Contest.   

   
7. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.  Carol went over the COIs that 
are still needed.

8. New Items:   

a) Liz stated that she created a hard copy sample of a Certificate of Insurance that everyone can use as 
an illustration when reviewing their COIs.  Using this will enable everyone to make sure that all 
required fields have been entered by their respective vendors.      

b) Chris stated that the red pallet for temporarily storing documents that need to be shred has been 
ordered and received.   

9. Wellness Initiatives: 

a) Liz Stowick stated that she will be giving Jessica’s staff a “Path Presentation.”   
      

        Adjourn:  11:26 a.m.   

The next Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October 17, 2018  
at 11:00 a.m.



X. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

September 2017 

Distinguished Agency Accreditation 
We are close to the finish line for the two year process for Distinguished Accreditation.  We have 
finalized the gathering and organizing of required documentation, and updated policies 
As required for Accreditation. The informal review was conducted on September 7, with the 
final review to be held on September 18. 

NRPA and National Gold Medal 
We are excited to be one of four finalists for the National Gold Medal in our population.  The 
announcement for the Gold Medal winner will be held in Indianapolis on Tuesday, September 
25.

Summer Camp 
We had amazing Summer Camp sessions! Stephani Briskman, Chris Pietrini, and Jessica Stockl 
will be presenting the final camp report to the Board, which is included in the packet. 

Beach
The swimming beach is closed for the season and will no longer be staffed with lifeguards and 
attendants.  We will however leave the bathrooms open on warm days until the end of 
September.  The Boat house is open until October 14 on the weekends.  The aquatics staff had a 
safe and fun summer. 

Early Childhood 
The preschool year is off to a great start.  Staff worked tirelessly to transition rooms for the 
expansion of Children Circle during the one week break in August.  Amanda, our new Early 
Childhood Supervisor and Jessica, Early Childhood Manager have done an outstanding job with 
their first start to the ELC school year.  There were a few bumps in the road in regards to 
communication but nothing that won’t be improved on going forward.  Overall the children had a 
great first few weeks.  What Bobby, Jessica, and Amanda will be developing going forward is 
timelines for necessary tasks. This will ensure in the future when a new manager or supervisor 
starts they are not in the dark about what and when tasks need to be done, in order to provide for 
a seamless transition should we have management changes.  

Afterschool Care 
Our Afterschool Care program that is held at Watts is at capacity for most of the days with a 
waiting list.  This very popular program is a need for working parents.  Staff is currently working 
on solutions on how to expand this program in the future and still keep the quality of the 
program.   

Staff Training 
All full-time staff, with the exception of Children Circle staff, participated in our yearly four 
hour training to review administrative polices/procedures, safety, health/wellness, technology, 
trends and updates on Park District projects. 



2

Seasonal Employee Survey  
We conducted our third annual employee survey to provide seasonal staff an opportunity to share 
their opinion and provide feedback about their employment at the Glencoe Park District. All 
seasonal recreation and facility employees were asked to complete this survey. The constructive 
feedback is important in evaluating how the Park District is doing as an employer and is an 
essential tool for future changes/improvements.  As with every survey, we gathered useful 
information to improve our services to not only our staff, but also those who attend our 
programs. We will take notes of the areas that we could improve on when budgeting and 
planning staff training next year.

Playgrounds!
Vernon Park opened with great reviews earlier this month. It is exciting to go by a playground 
that was underutilized and see dozens of children playing on it at all times of the day. 

Old Elm Playground Park pop up opening will take place on Friday, September 28 at 6:00pm. 
The playground is almost complete, we just need around 10 days for grass seed to take root, 
otherwise it will be a muddy mess. 

The construction at Woodlawn Park has begun.  We anticipate the construction of this park to 
last most of fall. 

Building and Parking Improvements 
There has been a considerable amount of work done on the Takiff Parking Lot.  The lot overlay, 
bench, bike racks, and landscaping still needs to be done. The anticipated date for the overlay is 
Columbus Day weekend. 

Staff had a productive week during the Takiff closure.  A complete list of projects can be found 
in the Parks Report.  

Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Village Wide Active Transport Plan 
The Village Wide Active Transportation plan is concluding with a final meeting scheduled 
for late September. This has been a very educational process which will result in some 
excellent improvements throughout the village. 

School District 
Staff continues to work with the school district on tree trimming, using our provider and 
billing back the school district for any work being done on school district property. In 
addition, we have begun talks with the District on how we can assist in the replacement of 
the playground at South School.  This would not be financial assistance, but may include 
expanding the playground onto park land and using our expertise.  They are planning on 
using Altamanu for the design.  The District allows us to use their facilities for afterschool 
and athletic programs in return we maintain the field areas around the schools. These are all 
examples of great partnerships we have developed with the school district. 



3

Sustainability Committee 
Chris Leiner continues to be the liaison to the village wide Sustainability Committee. 
Commissioner Onderdonk also serves on that committee. 

Library
We continue to work with the library on programs. They were the first one to jump on board 
to assist with Harvest Fest this fall.  Our joint Tots-n-Tunes program was a big hit this 
summer.

Freedom of Information Report 
There were eight FOIA requests in July and August. 

Canon requested their competitor’s bid packet on July 16 and the District responded in full 
on July 19.
IIIFFC requested D&J Landscape documents regarding the 2018 playground and park 
renovations on July 20 and the District responded in full on July 25. 
IIIFFC requested Hacienda Landscaping documents regarding the 2018 playground and park 
renovations on July 25 and was responded to in full on August 1. 
NBC5 Chicago requested participant concussion details on July 31, which was found to be 
exempt under 7(1)(s). No information was shared. 
NBC5 Chicago requested sexual abuse history on August 7, which was replied to on August 
8. The District has no records responsive to their request. 
IIIFFC requested Hacienda Landscaping documents regarding the 2018 playground and park 
renovations on August 17 and was responded to in full on August 23 
Laurie Morse requested Resolution #636 and minutes and audio for the June 17, 2003 
Regular Board meeting on August 20 and was partially responded to on August 23. The 
District legally does not have the audio recording. 
SmartProcedure requested purchasing records from 5/21/18 to current on August 21 and was 
responded to in full on August 27.

Staff News 
I am happy to announce that Adam Wohl welcomed a son to his family on September 10.  Baby 
Henry, Adam and his wife, Alyssa are doing wonderful. We also had two weddings this month. 
Erin Classen (Maassen) and Jessica Stockl both got married in August. 

Items that you may want to add to your calendar 
Harvest Fest on October 6 
Tales and Ales on October 6 
September 25: NRPA Gold Medal Announcement! 
October 2:  Special Projects and Finance Committee Meetings at Takiff Center 7:00pm 

Submitted by:
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



XII. Action Item A
Approval of IGS Natural Gas Contract

Glencoe Park District
September 2018 Board Meeting



 

Glenc

 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJEC

DATE: 

 

The Park
per therm
per therm
terms. Th
36 month
this per p
the entire
 
The prev
contract o
per therm
us the fix
approxim
 
No. Secti
competit
  
Recomm
for a 36-m
therm.  
 

coe Park Distric

 BOAR

  LISA 
 PARK

CT: IGS N

 9/17/1

k District has
m. After rese
m contract w
his contract h
hs at the IGS
per therm rat
e Park Distri

vious contrac
offers more 

m during the 
xed rate of .3
mately $10,0

ion 8 of the 
ive bidding r

mended Mot
month contr

ct / 999 Green

INT

RD OF COM

SHEPPARD
KS & MAIN

NATURAL G

18 

s completed 
arch, we are
ith IGS Ener
has no penal

S rate of .324
te. This rate 
ict.  

ct was variab
favorable te
heating seas

3240 per ther
00 in saving

Illinois Park
requirement

tion: To app
ract for fixed

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

MMISSIONE

D, EXECUT
NTENANCE

GAS CONT

the current n
e seeking the
rgy. IGS En
lties for an in
40 per therm
is based off 

ble rate with 
erms during t
son in the pr
rm. If histori

gs over the 3

k District Co
t. 

rove and aut
d per therm n

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMOR

ERS 

TIVE DIREC

RACT 

natural gas c
e Board’s app
ergy has off
ncrease or d

m. We can us
the historica

seasonal spi
the 5 month 
revious contr
ical usage re
6 month con

de exempts 

thorize the E
natural gas w

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

RANDUM

CTOR, CHR

contract with
proval to en

fered the Par
decrease in u

e more or le
al 12 month 

ikes during t
heating seas

ract is .3761
emains the sa
ntract.  

contracts for

Executive Di
with IGS Ene

5-3030 / fax (

M 

RIS LEINER

h Vanguard f
nter into a 3-y
rk District m
sage. Staff i

ess gas and s
use of 88,22

the heating s
son. The ave
 per therm. I
ame the new

r utility serv

irector to sig
ergy at the ra

847) 835-4942

R DIRECTOR

for natural g
year fixed ra

more favorabl
s recommen
till benefit fr
20 therms ac

season. The 
erage rate pa
IGS has offe

w rate represe

vices from th

gn an agreem
ate of .3240 

2 

R OF 

gas 
ate 
le 

nding 
from 
cross 

IGS 
aid 
ered 
ents 

he 

ment 
per 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes of July 10, 2018 Special Projects & Facilities Committee Mtg
	Minutes of July 17, 2018 Regular Board Mtg
	Minutes of August 7, 2018 Special Projects & Facilities Committee Mtg
	Minutes of September 11, 2018 Special Projects & Facilities Committee Mtg + Old Green Bay Linear Parks Master Plan Presentation
	Minutes of September 11, 2018 Special Board Mtg
	Voucher List of Bills 7/12/18-8/17/18
	Voucher List of Bills 8/18/18-9/12/18
	Approval of Resolution No. 887: Brad Janis 20 Years Service
	Financial Report - July
	Financial Report - August
	Presentation by the Friends of the Green Bay Trail on SOSA Project
	2018 Summer Camp Report
	Business Dept Report
	Legal Financial Calendar
	Recreation & Facilities Dept Report
	Parks & Facilities Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing & Communications Dept Report
	Minutes of August 15, 2018 Safety & Wellness Committee Mtg
	Minutes of September 5, 2018 Safety & Wellness Committee Mtg
	Executive Director's Report
	Approval of IGS Natural Gas Contract

